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under any of the following provisions:

Items to be Included in this Report




Item 2.01 Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.

As previously reported on the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on December 8, 2005, the Company completed the initial
closing (the “Initial Closing”) of the purchase of shares of BioCheck, Inc. (“BioCheck”). BioCheck is a privately held California
corporation engaged in the development of immunoassays, with a number of clinical diagnostic tests that have been approved by the
United States Food and Drug Administration. As previously reported, on or about September 19, 2005, the Company entered into a Stock
Purchase Agreement with BioCheck and the shareholders of BioCheck (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company had the right
to purchase up to all of the outstanding shares of common stock of BioCheck for an aggregate purchase price of $6 million in cash.
Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, at the Initial Closing, the Company purchased an aggregate of fifty-one percent (51%) of the
outstanding shares of common stock of BioCheck from each of the shareholders of BioCheck on a pro rata basis, for an aggregate of
$3,060,000 in cash.

This Form 8-K/A amends the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 8, 2005 to include Item 9.01(a) Financial
Statements of Business Acquired and Item 9.01(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.

Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.
(a) Financial Statements of Business Acquired

The required financial statements of BioCheck are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.1 and are incorporated in their entirety
herein by reference.

(b)  Pro Forma Financial Information

The required pro forma financial information is attached hereto as Exhibit 99.2 and is incorporated in its entirety herein by
reference.

(c) Exhibits
23.1 Consent of independent auditors.
99.1 Audited financial statements of BioCheck, Inc. for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004.

Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as of September 30, 2005 and for the nine-months then ended

992 (unaudited).




Signature(s)

Pursuant to the Requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its
behalf by the Undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Dated: February 10, 2006

OXIS International, Inc.

By: /s/Michael D. Centron
Michael D. Centron
Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Auditors
Board of Directors

BioCheck, Inc.
Foster City, California

CONSENT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

We consent to the use of our audit report dated January 23, 2006, with respect to the balance sheets of BioCheck, Inc., as of December
31, 2004 and 2003, and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, which report
appears in the Form 8-K/A of Oxis International, Inc. dated February 10, 2006.

Williams & Webster, P.S.
Certified Public Accountants
Spokane, Washington

February 9, 2006




Exhibit 99.1
Audited Financial Statements of BioCheck, Inc.

For The Fiscal Years Ending December 31, 2004 And 2003

Board of Directors
BioCheck, Inc.
Foster City, CA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of BioCheck, Inc. as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of BioCheck, Inc.
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the results of its operations, stockholders’ equity and its cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Williams & Webster, P.S.
Certified Public Accountants
Spokane, Washington
January 23, 2006




BIOCHECK, INC.
BALANCE SHEET
(in thousands of dollars)

September 30,
2005 December 31, December 31,
(unaudited) 2004 2003
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash $ 416 $ 586 $ 475
Accounts receivable, net 654 665 580
Inventory 316 297 211
Prepaid expenses 139 2 -
Deferred tax asset 24 12 -
Total current assets 1,549 1,562 1,266
Property and equipment
Property and equipment, net 172 195 225
Total property and equipment 172 195 225
Other assets
Investments 75 75 50
Rent deposit 17 23 23
Total other assets 92 98 73
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,813 § 1,855 $ 1,564

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BIOCHECK, INC.
BALANCE SHEET
(in thousands of dollars)

(continued)
September 30,
2005 December 31, December 31,
(unaudited) 2004 2003
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 257 $ 205 $ 160
Related party payable 80 140 -
Redemption payable 100 - -
Taxes payable 1 179 65
Deferred tax liability - - 3
Tenant deposit 6 6 -
Total current liabilities 444 530 228
Long-term liabilities
Deferred tax liability 11 16 13
Total long-term liabilities 11 16 13
Commitments and contingencies - - -
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, no par, 10,000,000 shares
authorized; 217,696, 239,676 and 259,676 shares issued and outstanding,
respectively 552 552 552
Retained earnings 806 757 771
Total stockholders’ equity 1,358 1,309 1,323
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY $ 1,813 § 1,855 § 1,564

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Revenues

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Expenses
Travel and entertainment
Depreciation
General and administrative
Insurance
Professional fees
Research and development
Taxes

Total expenses

Income from operations

Other income (expenses)
Interest income
Asset disposal (loss)
Miscellaneous income (expense)
Moving expense
Research grant
Rental income
Vendor compensation

Total other income (expenses)

Income before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Current
Deferred

Net income

Basic and diluted net income per
Common share

Weighted average number of basic
and diluted common stock
shares outstanding

BIOCHECK, INC.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands of dollars, except earnings per share data)

Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30, Year Ended
2005 2004 December 31, December 31,
(unaudited) (unaudited) 2004 2003
$ 3,041 3,174 § 4,077 $ 3,962
1,422 1,484 1,954 1,806
1,619 1,690 2,123 2,156
51 43 52 78
40 55 74 60
389 402 561 508
82 79 131 128
53 27 34 145
552 450 839 442
17 8 9 49
1,184 1,064 1,700 1,410
435 626 423 746
8 2 5 4
- - 27) -
1 (28) (24) 7
1 (44) (98) 1
- 99 99 -
32 - - -
10 - - -
50 29 (45) 10
485 655 378 756
133 78 104 208
(16) ©) (12) 16
117 69 92 224
$ 368 § 586 $ 286 $ 532
$ 158 § 234§ 1.14 $ 2.01
232,349 250,787 251,841 264,774

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BIOCHECK, INC.
STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
(in thousands of dollars, except share data)

Total
Common Stock Retained Stockholder's
Shares Amount Earnings Equity
Balance January 1, 2003 266,666 $ 500 $ 539 § 1,039
Stock issuance for services at $4 per share 13,010 52 - 52
Stock redeemed at $15 per share (20,000) - (300) (300)
Net income for year ended December 31, 2003 - - 532 532
Balance, December 31, 2003 259,676 552 771 1,323
Stock redeemed at $15 per share (20,000) - (300) (300)
Net income for year ended December 31, 2004 - - 286 286
Balance, December 31, 2004 239,676 552 757 1,309
Stock redeemed at $10 per share (1,980) - (19) (19)
Stock redeemed at $15 per share (20,000) - (300) (300)
Net income for nine months ended September 30, 2005
(unaudited) - - 368 368
Balance, September 30, 2005 (unaudited) 217,696 $ 552 $ 806 $ 1,358

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BIOCHECK, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands of dollars)

Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30, Year Ended
2005 December 31, December 31,
(unaudited) (unaudited)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 368 S 586 $ 286 $ 532
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided
by operations:
Depreciation 40 55 74 60
Stock issued for services - - - 52
Loss on asset disposal - - 26 -
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables 11 (126) (84) (34)
Inventory (18) 36 (87) 51
Prepaids (137) - 2) 68
Deposits 6 - - (17)
Deferred tax asset (13) ®) (11) -
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 52 (44) 45 (310)
Related party payable (60) - 140 -
Taxes payable (178) 93 114 61
Deferred tax liability @) 2) -- 16
Other payables 100 - 6 -
Net cash provided by operating activities 167 590 507 479
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment a7 ShH (71) 92)
Investments acquired o = 25) (50)
Net cash used by investing activities (17) (51) (96) (142)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Treasury stock purchased (320) (200) (300) (300)
Net cash used by financing activities (320) (200) (300) (300)
Net increase (decrease) in cash (170) 339 111 37
CASH - Beginning of period 586 475 475 438
CASH - End of period $ 416 $ 814 § 586 475
SUPPLEMENTAL CASHFLOW DISCLOSURES
Interest expense paid $ - 3 - $ = =
Income taxes paid $ -3 -3 104 208
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING TRANSACTIONS
Stock issued for services $ - 3 - 3 - 52

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BIOCHECK, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

BioCheck, Inc. (“the Company” or “BioCheck”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of California on December 16, 1996. The
Company is engaged in the business o f development and production of kits and materials used to diagnose a variety o f medical
conditions such as cancer, heart disease, infectious diseases, reproductive disorders, and thyroid disorders. BioCheck also provides a
variety of services including custom immunoassay development, antibody conjugation and purification, and contract manufacturing.

The Company’s year-end is December 31%%,

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of BioCheck, Inc. is presented to assist in understanding the Company’s financial
statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of the Company’s management, which is responsible for their
integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Basis of Accounting
The Company uses the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Accounting Pronouncements Recent

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154, “Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections,” (hereinafter “SFAS No. 154”) which replaces Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 20,
“Accounting Changes”, and SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements - An Amendment of APB
Opinion No. 28”. SFAS No. 154 provides guidance on accounting for and reporting changes in accounting principle and error
corrections. SFAS No. 154 requires that changes in accounting principle be applied retrospectively to prior period financial statements
and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,2005. The Company does not expect SFAS No. 154 to have a material
impact on its financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement o f Financial Accounting Standards No. 153. This
statement addresses the measurement of exchanges of nonmonetary assets. The guidance in APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for
Nonmonetary Transactions,” is based on the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be measured based on the fair value
ofthe assets exchanged. The guidance in that opinion, however, included certain exceptions to that principle. This statement amends
Opinion 29 to eliminate the exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception
for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the
future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. This statement is effective for financial
statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. Earlier application is permitted for nonmonetary asset exchanges incurred
during fiscal years beginning after the date of this statement is issued. Management believes that this statement has no impact on the
current financial statements of the Company.




In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 152, which
amends FASB statement No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate,” to reference the financial accounting and reporting guidance for
real estate time-sharing transactions that is provided in AICPA Statement of Position (SOP) 04-2, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-
Sharing Transactions.” This statement also amends FASB Statement No. 67, “Accounting for Costs and Initial Rental Operations of
Real Estate Projects,” to state that the guidance for (a) incidental operations and (b) costs incurred to sell real estate projects does not
apply to real estate time-sharing transactions. The accounting for those operations and costs is subject to the guidance in SOP 04-2. This
statement is effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. Management believes that this statement has
no impact on the current financial statements of the Company.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued a revision to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
123R, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensations.” This statement supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and its related implementation guidance. This statement establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which
an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. It also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in
exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of
those equity instruments. This statement focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in
share-based payment transactions. This statement does not change the accounting guidance for share based payment transactions with
parties other than employees provided in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123. This statement does not address the
accounting for employee share ownership plans, which are subject to AICPA Statement of Position 93-6, “Employers’ Accounting for
Employee Stock Ownership Plans.” The Company has not yet determined the impact to its financial statements from the adoption of this
statement.

In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 151, “Inventory
Costs— an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4.” This statement amends the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, “Inventory
Pricing,” to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage).
Paragraph 5 of ARB 43, Chapter 4, previously stated that “. . . under some circumstances, items such as idle facility expense, excessive
spoilage, double freight, and rehandling costs may be so abnormal as to require treatment as current period charges. . . .” This statement
requires that those items be recognized as current-period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of “so abnormal.” In
addition, this statement requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity
of the production facilities. This statement is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005.
Management believes that this statement has no immediate material impact on the Company.




Accounts Receivable
The Company carries its accounts receivable at net realizable value. As of September 30, 2005, the Company’s accounts receivable
balance was $654,328. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, accounts receivable balances were $664,837 and $580,382, respectively.

The Company estimates bad debts utilizing the allowance method, based upon past experience and current market conditions. The
Company determined that no allowance was required at September 30, 2005 or at December 31, 2004, although an allowance of $5,743
was recorded at December 31, 2003. For the nine months ended September 30, 2005, the Company recorded bad debt expense of
$1,449. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded bad debt expense of $580 and $32,361, respectively.

Advertising Expenses

Advertising expenses consist primarily of costs incurred in the design, development, and printing of Company literature and marketing
materials. The Company expenses all advertising expenditures as incurred. The Company had no advertising expenses for the nine
months ended September 30, 2005 and the year ended December 31, 2004. The Company recorded $833 of advertising expense in 2003.

Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and so near their

maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in interest rates. Commercial papers, negotiable certificates of deposit, and bank
acceptances with original maturities of three months or shorter at investment date are considered to be cash equivalents.

Comprehensive Income

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, “Reporting
Comprehensive Income” (hereinafter “SFAS No. 130”). SFAS No. 130 establishes standards for reporting and displaying comprehensive
income, its components and accumulated balances. SFAS No. 130 is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 1997. The
Company adopted this accounting standard, and its adoption has had no material effect onthe Company’s financial statements and
disclosures.

Concentration of Risk

The Company maintains its cash accounts in three bank accounts. Two of the accounts maintained at Merrill Lynch are not covered by
federal depository insurance (FDIC). As of September 30, 2005, the amount not covered by FDIC was $365,018. As of December 31,
2004 and 2003, amounts not covered by FDIC were $554,601 and $376,889, respectively.

Derivative Instruments

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (hereinafter “SFAS No. 133”), as amended by SFAS No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities - Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB No. 133”, and SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities”, and SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities”. These statements establish accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. They require that an entity recognize all derivatives as
either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet and measure those instruments at fair value.




If certain conditions are met, a derivative may be specifically designated as a hedge, the objective of which is to match the timing of gain
or loss recognition on the hedging derivative with the recognition of (i) the changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that
are attributable to the hedged risk or (ii) the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted transaction.

For a derivative not designated as a hedging instrument, the gain or loss is recognized in income in the period of change.

Historically, the Company has not entered into derivatives contracts to hedge existing risks or for speculative purposes. At September
30, 2005, and December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company has not engaged in any transactions that would be considered derivative
instruments or hedging activities.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts for cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair value.

Impaired Asset Policy

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (hereinafter “SFAS No. 144”). SFAS No. 144 replaces SFAS No. 121,
“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.” This standard establishes a single
accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale, including discontinued operations. SFAS No. 144 requires that these
long-lived assets be measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, whether reported in continuing operations or
discontinued operations. In complying with this standard, the Company reviews its long-lived assets quarterly to determine if any events
or changes in circumstances have transpired which indicate that the carrying value of its assets may not be recoverable. The Company
determines impairment by comparing the undiscounted future cash flows estimated to be generated by its assets to their respective
carrying amounts.

The Company does not believe any adjustments are needed to the carrying value of its assets at September 30, 2005, December 31, 2004
or 2003.

Inventory Method
The Company’s inventories principally include antibodies, conjugates, serums, biochemicals, and solutions. The Company values its
inventory at lower of cost or market, with cost being determined using the first-in, first-out method.

Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the periods. Diluted
net income per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common and potentially dilutive common shares during the
periods, such as options, warrants and convertible securities, except those that are antidilutive. There were no outstanding common stock
equivalents at the reporting dates of the enclosed financial statements.
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Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using accelerated methods of depreciation over estimated useful

lives that range from 5 to 7 years for furniture and equipment, and 3 years for software.

Provision for Taxes

Income taxes are provided based upon the liability method of accounting pursuantt o Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (hereinafter “SFAS No.109”). Under this approach, deferred income taxes are
recorded to reflect the tax consequences in future years of differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial
reporting amounts at each year-end. The provision for income taxes is generally computed based on pretax income. However, the
provision may differ from income taxes currently payable or receivable, because certain items of income and expense are recognized in
different periods for financial reporting purposes than they are for federal income tax purposes. A valuation allowance is recorded
against deferred tax assets if management does not believe the Company has met the “more likely than not” standard imposed by SFAS
No. 109 to allow recognition of such an asset. See Note 8.

Research and Development Cost

Expenditures for research activities relating to product development are charged to expense as incurred. The Company’s research and
development expenditures consist primarily of salaries and related costs of employees engaged in research, design and development
activities, costs of engineering materials and supplies, and professional consulting services. Such expenditures amounted to $552,872,
$839,303 and $491,941, respectively, for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Revenue Recognition

The Company manufactures, and has manufactured on a contract basis, products that are sold to customers. The Company recognizes
revenue from sales when there is persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists, services are rendered and/or products are shipped, the
price to the buyer is readily determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 3 - CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following at the dates shown:

September 30, 2005 December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Checking accounts $ 50,795 $ 30916 $ 97,743
Money market accounts 365,018 554,601 376,889
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 415813  $ 585,517 $ 474,632

The Company’s cash (checking) account was covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) up to a maximum of $100,000. As of the
reporting dates shown, the money market accounts (both at Merrill Lynch) were not covered by FDIC.

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following at the dates shown:

September 30, 2005 December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Furniture and office equipment $ 197,316 $ 195,585 $ 156,478
Laboratory equipment 390,676 375,658 383,327
Leasehold improvement 29,240 29,240 29,240
Total Property and Equipment 617,232 600,483 569,045
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (445,241) (405,463) (344,455)
Property and Equipment Net $ 171,991 § 195,020 $ 224,590

Depreciation expense was $39,779 for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, $73,792 for 2004, and $59,864 for 2003.
NOTE 5 - OPERATING LEASES

The Company entered into a 5-year operating lease to expand its office space located in Foster City, California on November 1, 2003.
Rent expense was $227,026 for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and $287,709 for the year ended December 31, 2004. For
the year ended December 31, 2003, there was no Foster City rent expense. Future minimum lease payments for the remaining term of
the Foster City lease are as follows:

2005 $ 45,850
2006 188,888
2007 194,526
2008 166,928

Total $ 596,192




In October 2003, the Company entered into a 5-year operating lease to expand its office space located in 890 Cowan, Burlingame,
California. The lease is to expire on December 31, 2008. The Company has subleased the space as a result of moving its office to Foster
City, California. Rental income was $25,394 for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and $0 for the two preceding years. Rent
expense was $41,552 for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and $49,852 and $170,489, respectively, for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003. Future minimum lease payments for the remaining term of the lease are as follows:

2005 $ 10,354
2006 42,656
2007 43,936
2008 45,254

Total $ 142,200

NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During 2004, the Company engaged an affiliate, Evernew Biotech Inc. (“Evernew”), an investee of one of its shareholders, to perform
research and development services. The development contract fee charged by Evernew to BioCheck was $80,000 for the nine months
ended September 30, 2005 and $140,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The Company also provides laboratory space at no
charge to Evernew.

NOTE 7 - EQUITY

The Company is authorized to issue ten million (10,000,000) shares of no par common stock. As of September 30, 2005, there were
issued and outstanding common stock shares of 217,696. During 2003, the Company entered into an agreement with several of its
original shareholders to redeem within four years all of their holdings (in aggregate, 80,000 shares) of the Company's common stock at a
purchase price of $15 per share. The Company redeemed from these original shareholders increments of 20,000 shares each during the
nine months ended September 30, 2005 and the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. The Company also redeemed from other
shareholders 1,980 of the Company’s common stock at a purchase price of $10 per share in 2005.

NOTE 8 - INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for its income taxes under the asset and liability approach whereby the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities are recognized as deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Effective federal and state income tax rates have been applied in the calculation of deferred tax assets. A valuation allowance is
established for any deferred tax assets for which realization is uncertain.
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Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at the dates shown were as follows:

September 30, December 31, December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Beginning balance $ (11,451) $ 2,778  $ -
Current:
Inventory uniform capitalization - (3,984) 2,279
State income tax (12,650) (10,245) 499
Current Deferred Tax (asset)/liability $ (24,101) $ (11,451) $ 2,778
Beginning balance $ 15,543  § 13,029 §$ -
Non-current:
Depreciation (4,123) 5,402 13,029
Loss on the sale of assets - (2,888) -
Non-Current Deferred Tax (asset)/liability $ 11,420 $ 15543 $ 13,029
The provision for income taxes at the dates shown was as follows:
September 30, December 31, December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Federal income tax $ 133,218 $ 103,949 $ 207,931
State income tax 12,207 4,698 45,457
Total Provision for Income Tax $ 145,425  $ 108,647 $ 253,388

A reconciliation of the federal statutory tax rates to the effective tax rates is as follows:

September 30, December 31, December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Federal statutory income tax rate 34.00% 34.00% 34.00%
Research tax credit (7.39%) (12.57%) (6.88%)
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Effective Federal Tax Rate 26.61% 21.43% 27.12%
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A reconciliation of the state statutory tax rates to the effective tax rates is as follows:

September 30, December 31, December 31,
2005 2004 2003
State statutory income tax rate 8.85% 8.85% 8.85%
Research tax credit (6.51%) (8.02%) (3.25%)
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Effective State Tax Rate 2.34% 0.83% 5.60%

NOTE 9 - COMMON STOCK PLAN

In 2003, the Company’s board of directors approved the adoption of the Company’s 2003 Stock Plan (“the Plan”), which provides for
the granting of stock, stock purchase rights, incentive stock options and nonstatutory stock optionsto employees, directors and
consultants at the fair market value per share on the date of grant as determined by the board of directors. The options vest ratably over a
four-year period commencing as of the date of employment. The Company has authorized 14,300 shares of common stock for issuance
under the Plan. During the year ended December 31, 2003, 13,010 stock purchase rights were distributed and immediately exercised for
the issuance of 13,010 shares of common stock. At December 31, 2003 and 2004, and at September 30, 2005, 1,290 shares were
reserved for future grants under the Plan.

NOTE 10 - AGREEMENT WITH ANGIOGENEX, INC.

In December 2003, the Company entered into a development and marketing agreement with Angiogenex, Inc. for the development and
marketing of diagnostic, prognostic, or bio-analytical products. The Company will pay license fees to Angiogenex equal to 9% of the
gross revenue of the direct sale by BioCheck, Inc. of any Angiogenex-derived products and 25% of any sublicensing revenue received
from BioCheck, Inc. Also under the agreement, on the third anniversary of the agreement (December 2006), BioCheck is required to
begin paying a minimum annual royalty payment of $50,000 per year.

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Transaction with OXIS International, Inc.

On December 6, 2005, OXIS International, Inc. purchased an aggregate of fifty-one percent (51%) of the outstanding shares of common
stock of BioCheck, Inc. for the aggregate purchase price of $3,060,000 cash.

Pursuant to the agreement between OXIS International, Inc. and the Company, the cost of all shares purchased after the initial closing
will be increased by an additional eight percent (8%) per annum from the date of the initial closing through the date of such purchase. If
all outstanding shares have not been purchased within twelve months after the initial closing, the EBITDA (earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization expenses), if any, of the Company, a majority owned subsidiary of OXIS International, Inc., may be
used to repurchase the remaining outstanding shares of the Company at one or more additional closings.
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Exhibit 99.2

Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
As of September 30, 2005 (unaudited)

The following pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2005 and the pro forma condensed
consolidated statement of operations for the nine months then ended give effect to the acquisition of 51% of the outstanding share capital
of BioCheck, Inc. by OXIS International, Inc. The pro forma information is based on the unaudited consolidated financial statements of
OXIS International, Inc. as of September 30, 2005 and for the nine months then ended and the unaudited financial statements of BioCheck
Inc. as of September 30, 2005 and for the year then ended and the adjustments described in the accompanying notes to the pro forma
condensed consolidated financial statements.

OXIS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
September 30, 2005
(In thousands of dollars)

9/30/05
Pro Forma
OXIS BioCheck Adjust. Consolidated
Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,845 § 416 $ (3,127) (a) $ 1,134
Accounts receivable 297 654 -- 951
Inventory 289 316 -- 605
Prepaids and other current assets 119 139 -- 258
Deferred tax asset -- 24 -- 24
Restricted cash - - 3,060 (a) 3,060
Total current assets 4,550 1,549 (67) 6,032
Property, plant, and equipment, net 68 172 - 240
Patents and other assets 995 92 15 (a) 1,102
Goodwill -- -- 1,007 (a) 1,007
Investment in subsidiary 88 - (88) (a) -

Total assets $ 5,701 $ 1,813 $ 867 $ 8,381




OXIS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
September 30, 2005
(continued)
(In thousands of dollars)

9/30/05
Pro Forma

OXIS BioCheck Adjust. Consolidated

Liabilities and shareholders' equity

Current liabilities

Notes Payable $ -3 -3 3,060 (a) $ 3,060
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 488 264 -- 752
Accrued payroll 51 -- -- 51
Related party payable -- 80 -- 80
Redemption payable -- 100 -- 100
Total current liabilities 539 444 3,060 4,043
Long term liabilities -- 11 -- 11
Total liabilities 539 455 3,060 4,054
Minority interest - - 665 (a) 665
Shareholders’ equity 5,162 1,358 (2,858) (@) 3,662
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 5,701 $ 1,813 $ 867 $ 8,381




OXIS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations
December 31, 2004
(In thousands of dollars)

12/31/04
OXIS BioCheck  Pro Forma Consolidated
(audited) (audited) Adjust. Pro Forma
Revenues $ 2,364 $ 4,077 $ - $ 6,441
Cost of goods sold 1,216 1,954 - 3,170
Gross profit 1,148 2,123 -- 3,271
Operating expenses:

Research and development 278 839 1,500 2,617

Selling, general and administrative 1,843 852 2,695

Foreign legal proceedings 183 183

Restructuring charges 605 605

Taxes - 9 9

Total operating expenses 2,909 1,700 1,500 6,109
Operating income (loss) (1,761) 423 (1,500) (b) (2,838)
Other income and expenses:

Interest income 1 5 -- 6

Other income (expense) 19 (50) -- 31

Financing fees (856) - - (856)

Interest expense (101) - - (101)

Total other income and expenses (937) (45) - (982)
Minority interest in BioCheck (49%) -- - (140) () (140)
Income (loss) before income taxes (2,698) 378 (1,640) (3,960)
Income taxes:

Current -- 104 - 104

Deferred - (12) - (12)

Total income taxes - 92 - 92
Net income (loss) (2,698) 286 (1,640) (4,052)
ther comprehensive income (loss)

Foreign currency translation adjustment (26) - - (26)
Comprehensive loss $ (2,724) $ 286 $ (1,640) $ (4,078)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share (d) $ (0.15)
Weighted average number of basic and diluted shares used in computation (d) 26,828,289




OXIS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations
September 30, 2005
(In thousands of dollars)

9/30/05
Pro Forma Consolidated
OXIS BioCheck Adjust. Pro Forma
Revenues $ 1,718 $ 3,041 $ -- $ 4,759
Cost of goods sold 906 1,422 - 2,328
Gross profit 812 1,619 = 2,431
Operating expenses:

Research and development 191 552 -- 743

Selling, general and administrative 1,551 615 -- 2,166

Taxes 17 - 17

Total operating expenses 1,742 1,184 -- 2,926
Operating income (loss) (930) 435 -- (b) (495)
Other income and expenses:

Interest income 74 8 - 82

Other income 42 - 42

Interest expense (1D v

Total other income and expenses 63 50 - 113
Minority interest in BioCheck (49%) -- -- (180) (c) (180)
Income (loss) before income taxes (867) 485 (180) (562)
Income taxes:

Current -- 133 -- 133

Deferred -- (16) - (16)

Total income taxes -- 117 -- 117
Net income (loss) (867) 368 (180) (679)
Other comprehensive income (loss)

Foreign currency translation adjustment - - - -
Comprehensive loss $ 867)$ 368 $ (180) $ (679)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share (d) $ (0.02)
Weighted average number of basic and diluted shares used in computation (d) 42,104,110




OXIS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet and statement of operations reflect the pro forma effect of the
acquisition date (“the Acquisition”) of 51% of the outstanding share capital of BioCheck, Inc. by OXIS International, Inc., which
occurred on December 6, 2005. Under the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement (“the Agreement”), signed September 19, 2005, the
Company had the right to purchase up to all of the outstanding shares of common stock of BioCheck for an aggregate purchase price of
$6 million in cash. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, at the Initial Closing, the Company purchased an aggregate of fifty-one
percent (51%) of the outstanding shares of common stock of BioCheck from each of the shareholders of BioCheck on a pro rata basis,
for an aggregate of $3,060,000 in cash.

The pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet assumes that the Acquisition occurred on September 30, 2005. The pro forma
condensed consolidated statement of operations for the nine-months ended September 30, 2005 assumes that the Acquisition occurred
on January 1, 2005. The pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared based on the unaudited consolidated
financial statements of OXIS International, Inc. and for the nine-months then ended, which are included in the Company’s Report on
Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 2005. The accompanying pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet and
statement of operations should be read in conjunction with the historical financial statements and related notes contained in those
Reports.

These pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are provided for illustrative purposes only. Reliance should not be placed
on these pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements since they are not necessarily indicative of the financial position or the
results of operations that would have been obtained if the Acquisition had occurred on the dates assumed or to project the results of
operations for any future period or the financial condition at any future date.

Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet:

(a) The pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet reflects the Acquisition as though it had occurred on September 30, 2005.

The cost of the Acquisition consisted of the following:

Cash $3,060,000
Transaction costs and registration costs 155,000
$3,215,000




The preliminary allocation of the cost of the Acquisition is as follows:

Current assets $ 1,549,000
Property, plant and equipment, net 172,000
Patents and other assets 107,000
Goodwill 1,007,000
Total liabilities (455,000)
In-process research and development 1,500,000
Minority interest (665,000)
$ 3,215,000

The pro forma condensed consolidated statement of operations reflects the Acquisition as though it had occurred on January 1, 2004
and reflects the following adjustments:

(b) To reflect amortization of in-process research and development.

(c) To reflect the 49% minority interest in the net income of BioCheck, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2004 and the nine-
months ended September 30, 2005.

(d) Based on the weighted average shares outstanding for year ended December 31, 2004 and the nine-months ended September
30, 2005.
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Item 1.01. Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.

On February 10, 2006, OXIS International, Inc. (“OXIS”) entered into a Standard Form Office Lease dated February 2, 2006
(“Lease Agreement”) with Westcore Peninsula Vintage, LLC. Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, OXIS will lease 4,136 square feet of
rentable office space located at 323 Vintage Park Drive, Suite B, Foster City, California 94404 (the "Property"). The Property will serve
to accommodate the relocation and consolidation of OXIS’ corporate headquarters and manufacturing facilities following its recent
acquisition of a majority interest in BioCheck, Inc.

The term of the Lease Agreement is three years commencing on April 1, 2006 and ending on March 31, 2009. The annual base
rent under the Lease Agreement begins at $62,040.00 per year and increases incrementally to $65,818.20 by the end of the lease term. In
addition to the base rent, OXIS will be responsible for its proportionate share of the building's operating expenses and real estate taxes as

specified in the Lease Agreement.

OXIS has a renewal option to extend the Lease Agreement for one three-year period at the then-prevailing market rental value
for rentable property in the same area.

The foregoing summary of the material terms of the Lease Agreement is qualified in its entirety by the text of the Lease
Agreement attached as Exhibit 10.1 to this Current Report on Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.
(c) Exhibits

10.1 Standard Form Office Lease between OXIS International, Inc. and Westcore Peninsula Vintage, LLC dated February 2,
2006.

Signature(s)

Pursuant to the Requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its
behalf by the Undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

OXIS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Dated: February 13, 2006 By: /s/ MICHAEL D. CENTRON

Name: Michael D. Centron
Title: Chief Financial Officer
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EX-10.1 Standard Form Office Lease between OXIS International, Inc. and Westcore Peninsula Vintage, LLC dated February 2,
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EXHIBIT 10.1

STANDARD FORM OFFICE LEASE
BETWEEN
WESTCORE PENINSULA VINTAGE, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company,
as Landlord,

AND
OXIS INTERNATIONAL, INC.,

a Delaware corporation
as Tenant
Dated: February 2, 2006
For Premises Located at:

VINTAGE PARK
Suite B
323 Vintage Park Drive
Foster City, California 94404




LEASE

This Standard Form Office Lease (this “Lease”) is made as of February 2, 2006 (the “Lease Date”), by WESTCORE
PENINSULA VINTAGE, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Landlord”), and OXIS INTERNATIONAL, INC., a
Delaware corporation (“Tenant”).

Landlord and Tenant, intending to be legally bound, and in consideration of their mutual covenants and all conditions of this
Lease, covenant and agree as follows.

BASIC LEASE PROVISIONS

1. DEFINED TERMS

In this Lease the following terms have the meanings set forth below.

1.1. Premises. Approximately 4,136 rentable square feet, known as Suite B of the Building, as outlined on
Exhibit A attached to and made a part of this Lease.

1.2. Building. The building containing approximately 25,503 rentable square feet, and all future alterations,
additions, improvements, restorations or replacements, commonly known as 323 Vintage Park Drive, Foster City, California.

1.3. Term. Three (3) years.

1.4. Commencement Date. April 1, 2006, subject to adjustment as set forth in Article 3.

1.5. Expiration Date. March 31, 2009, subject to adjustment as set forth in Article 3.

1.6. Base Rent. Commencing on the Commencement Date and continuing throughout the Term, Tenant

shall pay Base Rent in accordance with the following schedule:

Monthly Base Rent

Lease Year Per Rentable Square Foot Monthly Base Rent
1 $1.25 $5,170.00
2 $1.29 (rounded) $5,325.10
3 $1.33 (rounded) $5,484.85
1.7. Security Deposit. $5,484.85.
1.8. Intentionally Omitted.
1.9. Tenant’s Proportionate Share of Operating Costs. Approximately 16.22% of the Operating Costs as

defined in Article 5 allocable to the Building, based upon the rentable square feet of the Premises, compared to the total rentable square
feet of the Building.

1.10. Permitted Use. Research and development and general office use and for no other use or purposes
whatsoever.

1.11. Tenant’s Trade Name. Oxis International, Inc.

1.12. Broker.

Landlord’s: Cornish & Carey Commercial
Tenant’s: Cornish & Carey Commercial

1.13. Guarantor(s): None.
1.14. Intentionally Omitted.
1.15. Landlord’s Address.

c/o Westcore Properties, LLC
235 Pine Street, Suite 1150

San Francisco, California 94104
Attention: Property Manager






With a copy to:

Westcore Properties, LLC
4445 Eastgate Mall, Suite 210
San Diego, California 92121
Attention: Asset Manager

1.16. Tenant’s Address.

Before occupancy:
OXIS International
6040 North Cutter Circle
Suite 317
Portland, Oregon 97217

After Occupancy: The Premises

1.17. Parking. Twelve (12) unreserved spaces at the then prevailing rate in the Building, which rate is
currently at no cost to Tenant.

1.18. Amount due on Execution of Lease. Upon Tenant’s execution of this Lease, Tenant shall pay the
following amount to Landlord:

Monthly Rent: $ 5,170.00
(For the First Month of the Term)

Security Deposit: $ 5,484.85
Construction Contribution (Section 2): $ 1,666.67
TOTAL DUE ON EXECUTION OF LEASE: $T 12,321.52

2. PREMISES DEMISED

Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that a portion of the Premises are currently occupied by another tenant,
Conformis, Inc. (the “Existing Tenant”), in accordance with that certain Lease Agreement dated July 9, 2004, by and between Landlord
and the Existing Tenant (the “Existing Lease”). As consideration for the Existing Tenant’s agreement to surrender the portion of the
Premises occupied by it, Tenant agrees to contribute $1,666.67 (the “Construction Contribution”) for use by Existing Tenant to build
out a new room located within its premises. This Lease is expressly conditioned upon (a) the execution by Landlord and the Existing
Tenant of an amendment to the Existing Lease which provides for the surrender of possession of such portion of the Premises to
Landlord, (b) Existing Tenant’s vacation and surrender of the Premises to Landlord, and (c) Tenant’s payment of the Construction
Contribution to Landlord concurrently with its execution and delivery of this Lease (collectively, the “Surrender Condition”). In the
event that the Surrender Condition is not satisfied on or before March 1, 2006, Tenant may terminate this Lease by delivering five (5)
business days written prior notice to Landlord; provided, however, that if such Surrender Condition is satisfied within such five (5)
business day period, Tenant’s termination notice shall have no effect and this Lease shall be in full force and effect. Subject to the
foregoing conditions precedent, Landlord hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord the premises described in
Section 1.1 (“Premises”) on the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease (including all exhibits and attachments hereto, which are
incorporated herein by reference). Tenant’s obligations under this Lease shall commence as of the Lease Date, except as otherwise
expressly provided in this Lease. As used in this Lease, the term “Project” includes the Building, three (3) other buildings located
adjacent to the Building, adjoining parking areas and garages, if any, and the surrounding land and air space which are the site and
grounds for the Building and parking areas and garages.




3. TERM: OPTION TERM

3.1. Initial Term. The Term, Commencement Date and Expiration Date shall be as specified in Sections 1.3,
1.4, and 1.5, respectively. However, the Commencement Date shall be adjusted if necessary, and documented in the form of Exhibit C
attached hereto, to the earlier of: (a) the date of “Substantial Completion” of the “Tenant Improvements” as those terms are defined in
the Tenant Work Letter, attached hereto as Exhibit B; or (b) the date Tenant takes possession of the Premises, and the Expiration Date
shall be adjusted accordingly; provided that if the Commencement Date is not the first day of the month, then the Expiration Date shall
be the last day of the month in which the third (3r) anniversary of the Commencement Date occurs. In the event that the
Commencement Date does not occur on or before July 1, 2006 (the “Outside Commencement Date”), subject to delays caused by
Tenant or Force Majeure, then Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease by giving Landlord written notice within ten (10)
days after the Outside Commencement Date. If Tenant timely gives such notice to Landlord, then (i) this Lease shall terminate ten (10)
days after Landlord’s receipt of Tenant’s notice, (ii) Landlord shall reimburse to Tenant any prepaid rent, and (iii) Landlord and Tenant
shall have no further rights or obligations to each other pursuant to this Lease. For purposes of this Lease, the term “Lease Year” shall
mean each consecutive twelve (12) month period during the Term, commencing on the Commencement Date; provided, however, that
the first Lease Year shall commence on the Commencement Date and end on the last day of the eleventh month thereafter and the
second and each succeeding Lease Year shall commence on the first day of the next calendar month; and further provided that the last
Lease Year shall end on the Lease Expiration Date. The terms and provisions of this Lease shall be effective as of the Lease Date. In
addition, any references in this Lease to the “Term” or words of similar import shall mean the Term together with any Option Term (as
defined below), unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

3.2. Option Terms. Tenant shall have one (1) option to extend the Term for a period of three (3) years (the
“Option Term”), which Option shall be exercisable by written notice delivered by Tenant to Landlord as provided in Section 3.2.1.,
below, provided that Tenant has not committed an Event of Default which has not been cured, as such term is defined in Article 24
below, as of the date of delivery of such notice. The Option to extend the Term shall be exercisable by Tenant only if the originally
named Tenant or a Permitted Transferee (as hereinafter defined) is in possession of one hundred percent (100%) of the Premises.

3.2.1. Exercise of Option. The Option may be exercised by Tenant, if at all, only in the following
manner: (i) Tenant shall deliver written notice (the “Option Notice”) to Landlord not more than twelve (12) months nor less than eight
(8) months prior to the expiration of the Term, stating that Tenant is interested in exercising its option; (ii) Landlord, after receipt of
Tenant’s notice, shall deliver notice (the “Option Rent Notice”) to Tenant within thirty (30) days of Landlord’s receipt of the Option
Notice setting forth the “Option Rent,” as that term is defined in Section 3.2.2, below, which shall be applicable to the Lease during the
Option Term; and (iii) if Tenant wishes to exercise such Option, Tenant shall, on or before the date occurring six (6) months prior to the
expiration of the Term, exercise such Option by delivering written notice thereof to Landlord, and upon, and concurrent with, such
exercise, if the Option Rent was determined in accordance with Section 3.2.2, below, Tenant may, at its option, object to the Option
Rent contained in the Option Rent Notice, in which case the parties shall follow the procedure, and the Option Rent shall be
determined, as set forth in Section 3.2.3, below.

3.2.2. Option Rent. The rent payable by Tenant during the Option Term (the “Option Rent”) shall
be equal to the prevailing monthly market rental value for comparable space in the area in which the Building is located (including
additional rent and considering any “base year” or “expense stop” applicable thereto), including all escalations, at which tenants, as of
the commencement of the Option Term, are leasing non-sublease, non-renewal, non-encumbered, non-equity space in comparable
buildings for a comparable term. In no event shall the Option Rent be less than the Base Rent then in effect.

3.23. Determination of Option Rent. In the event Tenant timely and appropriately objects to the
Option Rent, Landlord and Tenant shall attempt to agree upon the Option Rent using their best good-faith efforts. If Landlord and
Tenant fail to reach agreement within ten (10) days following Tenant’s objection to the Option Rent (the “Outside Agreement Date”),
then Tenant may give written notice (“Appraisal Notice”) to Landlord that Tenant desires to have the Option Rent determined by
appraisal pursuant to the procedures set forth in Sections 3.2.3.1 through 3.2.3.5, below.

3.2.3.1. Within ten (10) days after Landlord’s receipt of the Appraisal Notice in accordance
with this Section, Landlord and Tenant shall agree upon a list of three (3) independent, unaffiliated real estate brokers with at least five
(5) years’ full-time experience brokering commercial properties within ten (10) miles of the Project. Within five (5) days after
agreement upon the list of brokers, Landlord and Tenant shall meet and each shall have the right to disqualify one (1) of the brokers
until only one (1) broker (“Broker”) has not been disqualified by either Landlord or Tenant.

3.2.3.2. Within fifteen (15) days after the appointment of the Broker, the parties shall each
submit their determination of the Option Rent to the Broker and the Broker shall independently determine the Option Rent. The Option
Rent shall equal the Option Rent submitted by Landlord or Tenant that is closest to the Option Rent determined by the Broker. The
Broker shall not divulge to Landlord or Tenant the Option Rent determined by the Broker until both parties instruct it to do so in
writing. The determination of the Broker in accordance with this Section 3.2 shall be final and binding on the parties and a judgment
may be rendered thereon in a court of competent jurisdiction.

3.2.33. If the parties fail to select the three (3) qualified brokers or the Broker, a Broker
shall be selected by the then-Presiding Judge of the Superior Court of the State of California of the County in which the Property is
located, acting in his individual judicial capacity.






3.2.34. The cost of arbitration shall be paid by Landlord and Tenant equally.

3.2.35. During the period requiring the adjustment of monthly Rent (as hereinafter
defined) to Option Rent, Tenant shall pay, as monthly Rent pending such determination, the monthly Rent in effect for the Premises
immediately prior to such adjustment; provided, however, that upon the determination of the applicable Option Rent, Tenant shall pay
Landlord the difference between the amount of monthly Rent Tenant actually paid and Option Rent immediately upon the
determination of the Option Rent.

4. SECURITY DEPOSIT

Concurrently with Tenant’s execution of this Lease, Tenant shall deposit with Landlord in the amount set forth in
Section 1.7, a security deposit as security for the performance of all of Tenant’s obligations under this Lease. Within thirty (30) days
after the expiration of the Term or any earlier termination of this Lease, Landlord shall (provided that Tenant is not in default under this
Lease) return the security deposit to Tenant, less such portion as Landlord shall have appropriated to make good any default by Tenant.
Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, to apply all or any portion of the security deposit to cure any Tenant default at any
time, in which event Tenant shall be obligated to restore the security deposit to its original amount within ten (10) business days, and
Tenant’s failure to do so shall be deemed to be a material default of this Lease. Tenant hereby waives (i) California Civil Code Section
1950.7, as amended or recodified from time to time, and any and all other laws, rules and regulations, now or hereafter in force,
applicable to security deposits in the commercial context (“Security Deposit Laws™), and (ii) any and all rights, duties and obligations
either party may now or, in the future, will have relating to or arising from the Security Deposit Laws. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary contained herein, the security deposit may be retained and applied by Landlord (a) to offset Rent (as defined in Section 5.3)
which is unpaid either before or after the termination of this Lease, and (b) against other damages suffered by Landlord before or after
the termination of this Lease, whether foreseeable or unforeseeable, caused by the act or omission of Tenant or any officer, employee,
agent or invitee of Tenant. The security deposit shall be held by Landlord free of trust, and may be commingled with other funds and
accounts of Landlord or its agents, and Tenant shall not be entitled to receive any interest earned with respect thereto. In the event of a
sale of the Project or assignment of this Lease by Landlord to any person other than a mortgagee, Landlord shall have the right to
transfer the security deposit to its vendee or assignee, subject to Tenant’s aforesaid rights upon termination, and thereupon Landlord
shall be released and relieved from any liability with respect to the return of such security deposit to Tenant, such vendee or assignee to
be solely responsible to Tenant therefor.




5. RENT

5.1. Tenant agrees to pay the Base Rent set forth in Section 1.6 for each month of the Term, payable in
advance on the first day of each month commencing with the Commencement Date, without any deduction or setoff whatsoever. All
payments of Rent (as defined in Section 5.3) shall be payable in lawful U.S. money. Payments shall not be deemed received until
actual receipt thereof by Landlord. If the Commencement Date is not the first day of a month, or if the Expiration Date is not the last
day of a month, a prorated monthly installment shall be paid at the then current rate for the fractional month during which this Lease
commences or terminates. At the time of execution of this Lease by Tenant, Tenant shall pay all money due to Landlord as set forth in
Section 1.18.

5.2. Intentionally Deleted.

5.3. In addition to Base Rent, Tenant shall pay to Landlord on the first day of each and every month of this
Lease, one-twelfth (1/12th) of the Landlord’s reasonable estimate of Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the Operating Costs for that
calendar year. The parties acknowledge that Landlord’s initial estimate of the monthly Operating Costs for the 2006 calendar year is
equal to $.46 per rentable square foot. Such estimate is not a maximum or a cap, but only an estimate which is subject to adjustment.
Landlord shall have the right, at any time and from time to time during the term of this Lease, by notice to Tenant, to change said
estimate. Landlord and Tenant agree and stipulate that the rentable area in the Building, the rentable area in the Premises, and Tenant’s
Proportionate Share of the Operating Costs are as set forth in Sections 1.1, 1.2 and 1.9 of this Lease. Tenant acknowledges that: (i)
Landlord makes no representation as to the actual rentable square footage of the Premises or the Building, and (ii) there shall be no
adjustment to the Base Rent based upon any other or additional measurement of rentable square footage. Any discrepancy discovered
after the Lease Date in connection with the square footages stated in Sections 1.1 and 1.2 shall not be a basis for an adjustment in the
Base Rent, unless otherwise agreed in writing by Landlord and Tenant. Base Rent, Tenant’s Proportionate Share of Operating Costs,
and all other amounts payable by Tenant under this Lease whether to Landlord or to others are collectively defined as the “Rent.”

5.4. “Operating Costs” shall be determined for each calendar year by taking into account on a consistent
basis all costs of management, maintenance, and operation of the Project. Operating Costs shall include but not be limited to: (i) the
cost of supplying all utilities, the cost of operating, maintaining, repairing, renovating and managing the utility systems, mechanical
systems, sanitary and storm drainage systems, and escalator and elevator systems, and the cost of supplies and equipment and
maintenance and service contracts in connection therewith; (ii) the cost of licenses, certificates, permits and inspections and the cost of
contesting the validity or applicability of any governmental enactments which may affect Operating Costs, and the costs incurred in
connection with the implementation and operation of a transportation system management program or similar program; (iii) the cost of
insurance carried by Landlord, in such amounts as Landlord may reasonably determine, including, without limitation, insurance
premiums and insurance deductibles paid or incurred by Landlord; (iv) fees, charges and other costs, including, without limitation,
management fees, consulting fees, legal fees and accounting fees, of all persons engaged by Landlord or otherwise reasonably incurred
by Landlord in connection with the management, operation, maintenance and repair of the Project; (v) wages, salaries and other
compensation and benefits of all persons engaged in the operation, maintenance or security of the Building, and employer’s Social
Security taxes, unemployment taxes or insurance, and any other taxes which may be levied on such wages, salaries, compensation and
benefits; provided, that if any employees of Landlord provide services for more than one building of Landlord, then a prorated portion
of such employees’ wages, benefits and taxes shall be included in Operating Costs based on the portion of their working time devoted
to the Building; (vi) payments under any easement, license, operating agreement, declaration, restrictive covenant, or instrument
pertaining to the sharing of costs by the Building; (vii) operation, repair, maintenance and replacement of all systems, equipment,
components or facilities which serve the Building in the whole or in part; (viii) amortization (including, without limitation, interest on
the unamortized cost at a rate equal to the floating commercial loan rate announced from time to time by Bank of America, a national
banking association, as its prime rate, plus 2% per annum) of the cost of acquiring or the rental expense of personal property used in
the maintenance, operation and repair of the Building and Project; and (ix) all federal, state, county, or local governmental or municipal
taxes, fees, charges or other impositions of every kind and nature, whether general, special, ordinary or extraordinary because of or in
connection with the ownership, leasing and operation of the Project, including, without limitation, any assessment, tax, fee, levy or
charge in addition to, or in substitution, partially or totally, of any assessment, tax, fee, levy or charge previously included within the
definition of real property tax, it being acknowledged by Tenant and Landlord that Proposition 13 was adopted by the voters of the
State of California in the June 1978 election and that assessments, taxes, fees, levies and charges may be imposed by governmental
agencies for such services as fire protection, street, sidewalk and road maintenance, conservation, refuse removal, transit and for other
governmental services formerly provided without charge to property owners or occupants; (x) costs incurred in connection with the
parking areas servicing the Project; and (xi) the cost of capital improvements or other costs incurred in connection with the Project (A)
that are intended as a labor-saving device or to effect other economies in the operation or maintenance of the Project, or any portion
thereof, (B) that are required under any governmental law or regulation but which were not so required in connection with the Project
at the time that permits for the construction of the Building were obtained, or (C) that are in Landlord’s reasonable opinion reasonably
necessary to maintain the Project in good condition and repair; provided, however, that each such permitted capital expenditure shall be
amortized (including, without limitation, interest on the unamortized cost) over its useful life as Landlord shall reasonably determine. If
the Building is a part of a multi-building development, those Operating Costs attributable to such development as a whole (and not
attributable solely to any individual building therein) shall be allocated by Landlord to the Building and to the other buildings within
such development on an equitable basis. Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, from time to time, to equitably allocate
some or all of the Operating Costs among different tenants of the building (the “Cost Pools”). Such Cost Pools may include, but shall
not be limited to, the office space tenants of the Building and the retail space tenants of the Building. If the Building is less than
ninety-five percent (95%) occupied during all or a portion of a calendar year, the variable components of the Operating Costs as
determined by Landlord shall be calculated as if the Building had been 95% occupied for the full calendar year. “Operating Costs”



shall not include any of the following, for purposes of calculating the portion of Operating Costs payable by Tenant: (1) leasing
commissions in connection with leases at the Building, (2) the cost of construction of tenant improvements for a specific tenant of the
Building in connection with such tenant’s occupancy of premises in the Building, (3) additions to the Project, (4) advertising, (5)
depreciation deductions taken by the Landlord for tax purposes, (6) payment of interest or principal on loans secured by the Project, (7)
income taxes of Landlord, (8) rent paid by Landlord under a ground lease for the Project, (9) gift, franchise, inheritance or estate taxes
imposed upon or assessed against the interest of any person in the Project, or taxes computed upon the basis of the net income of any
owners of any interest in the Project, (10) capital expenditures, improvements or structural changes made to the Building other than
those expressly permitted in subsection (xi) above, (11) costs, including permit, license and inspection costs, incurred with respect to
the installation of tenant improvements to other tenant’s leased premises within the Project or incurred in renovating or otherwise
improving, decorating, painting or redecorating vacant leasable space within the Project, (12) costs in order to market space to potential
tenants, leasing commissions, and attorneys’ fees in connection with the negotiation and preparation of letters, deal memos, letters of
intent, leases, subleases and/or assignments or other costs in connection with lease, sublease and/or assignment negotiations with
presents or prospective tenants or other occupants of the Project, (13) reserves (except that nothing contained herein shall be deemed to
prevent Lessor’s collection of anticipated Operating Costs for the current year), (14) ground lease rental on any underlying ground
lease or interest, principal, points and/or fees on debts or amortization on any mortgage or mortgages or any other debt instrument
encumbering the Project, (15) to the extent any employee of Landlord spends only a portion of his or her time working with respect to
the Project (as opposed to full time work with respect to the Project), a prorated amount of such employee’s wages, salaries and
compensation based upon the portion of time spent by such employee with respect to the projects other than the Project, (16) costs of
correcting any presently existing non-compliance of the Project with applicable laws (as enforced upon the execution of this Lease)
other than any such existing non-compliance where compliance work is not presently required to be performed (as opposed to existing
non-compliance where compliance work is legally mandated even in the absence of subsequent improvements, alterations or change in
use), (17) increased costs of performance resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord or Landlord’s agents,
employees or contractors, (18) costs incurred due to violation by Landlord or any other tenant in the Project of the terms and conditions
of any lease for space within the Project, (19) charitable or political contributions, (20) interest, penalties or other costs arising out of
Landlord’s failure to make timely payment of its obligations, (21) overhead and profit paid to Landlord or to subsidiaries or affiliates of
Landlord for goods and/or services in the Project to the extent the same exceeds the costs of such goods and/or services rendered by
qualified, unaffiliated third parties on a competitive basis, (22) costs to remediate Hazardous Materials located upon, within or beneath
the Project (i) prior to the Commencement Date, or (ii) after the Commencement Date as a result of Landlord’s acts, (23) costs (other
than ordinary maintenance) for sculpture, paintings and other objects of art, or (24) any excess utility expense payable by another
tenant of the Project pursuant to such tenant’s lease.




5.5. Within one hundred twenty (120) days after December 31 of each calendar year, or as soon thereafter as
practicable, the total of the Operating Costs for said calendar year just completed shall be determined by Landlord. Landlord shall give
Tenant notice of such determination, and Tenant within thirty (30) days thereafter shall pay to Landlord Tenant’s Proportionate Share
of the Operating Costs for such calendar year, less the payments made by Tenant to Landlord during such calendar year for Operating
Costs, or, if Tenant has overpaid such amount, Landlord shall credit any excess paid toward Tenant’s next rental payment due. During
the first and last years of the Term, Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the Operating Costs shall be adjusted in proportion to the number
of days of that calendar year during which this Lease is in effect over the total days in that calendar year.

5.6. In addition to Tenant’s Proportionate Share of Operating Costs, Tenant shall reimburse Landlord upon
demand for any and all taxes required to be paid by Landlord when such taxes are measured by or reasonably attributable to the cost or

value of Tenant’s equipment, furniture, fixtures and other personal property located in the Premises.

6. INITIAL CONSTRUCTION;: CONDITION OF THE PREMISES

Construction, if any, to be completed by Landlord will be in accordance with the Tenant Work Letter attached to and
made a part of this Lease as Exhibit B. Landlord will not be obligated to construct or install any improvements or facilities of any kind
other than those called for in Exhibit B. All improvements shall be the property of Landlord, subject to Section 7.4, and upon
termination of this Lease, Tenant shall deliver the Premises to Landlord in the condition required by Article 36. The Premises shall be
delivered to Tenant on or before the Commencement Date in broom clean condition with all major building systems, including the
electrical, heating, ventilation and air conditioning systems, plumbing and utilities, dock doors and levelers, and the roof of the
Premises in good working order as of the Commencement Date.




7. REPAIRS & ALTERATIONS

7.1. Subject to reimbursement pursuant to Section 5.3, and subject to the provisions of Section 7.2, and
Articles 8 and 14, Landlord agrees to keep in good condition the foundations, exterior walls, structural portions of the Building, the
roof and the HVAC, mechanical, electrical, life safety and plumbing systems of the Building not located in or exclusively serving the
Premises (expressly excluding, however, any HVAC, mechanical, electrical, plumbing or lighting equipment in the Premises, which
repair shall be Tenant’s sole responsibility). Landlord shall not be liable or responsible for breakdowns or temporary interruptions in
service or for any repair or maintenance which is caused in whole or in part by the act or omission of Tenant or its agents, contractors,
employees, or guests. In the event of any repair or maintenance caused by the act or omission of Tenant, Tenant shall pay for such
repair or maintenance upon demand from Landlord and shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless Landlord against any and all
loss, cost or liability in connection therewith. Landlord shall have a reasonable time after written notice from Tenant to perform
necessary repairs or maintenance. Tenant hereby waives and releases its right to make repairs at Landlord’s expense under Sections
1941 and 1942 of the California Civil Code or under any similar law, statute, or ordinance now or hereafter in effect.

7.2. Subject to the provisions of Section 7.1, and Articles 8 and 14, Tenant shall keep and maintain the
Premises in first class condition and repair, and shall make all necessary repairs thereto at Tenant’s sole cost and expense. Tenant’s
repair and maintenance obligations include, without limitation, repairs to: (a) floor coverings; (b) interior partitions; (c) doors; (d) the
interior side of demising walls; (e) electronic, phone and data cabling and related equipment that is installed by or for the exclusive
benefit of Tenant and located in the Premises or other portions of the Building or the Project; (f) supplemental air conditioning units,
kitchens, including hot water heaters, plumbing, and similar facilities exclusively serving the Premises; (g) mechanical (including
HVAC), plumbing fixtures, wiring, electrical, and lighting systems serving the Premises; (h) windows, glass and plate glass; (i)
ceilings; (j) skylights, smoke hatches and roof vents; (k) fixtures and equipment; and (1) Alterations (as hereinafter defined). If Tenant
fails to make any repairs to the Premises for more than thirty (30) days after written notice from Landlord (although notice shall not be
required in an emergency), Landlord may make the repairs and Tenant shall pay the reasonable cost of the repairs, together with an
administrative charge in an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the cost of the repairs. In addition, Tenant shall, at its sole cost and
expense, provide janitorial service to the Premises in a manner consistent with other similar projects in the Foster City, California area.
The janitorial service to be provided by Tenant shall include, but not be limited to, the obligation to clean the exterior windows and to
keep the interior of the Premises such as the windows, floors, walls, doors, showcases and fixtures clean and neat in appearance and to
remove all trash and debris which may be found in or around the Premises. Tenant is responsible for all redecorating, remodeling,
alteration and painting required by Tenant during the Term. Tenant covenants and agrees not to suffer or permit any lien of mechanics
or materialmen or others to be placed against the Project, the Building or the Premises with respect to work or services claimed to have
been performed for or materials claimed to have been furnished to Tenant or the Premises under this Article 7 or otherwise, and, in case
of any such lien attaching or notice of any lien, Tenant covenants and agrees to cause it to be immediately released and removed of
record or Landlord, at its sole option, may immediately take all action necessary to release and remove such lien, and Tenant shall,
upon demand, immediately reimburse Landlord for all costs and expenses relating thereto incurred by Landlord.

7.3. Tenant may not make any improvements, alterations, additions or changes to the Premises (collectively,
the “Alterations”) without first procuring the written consent of Landlord to such Alterations, which consent shall be requested by
Tenant not less than thirty (30) days prior to the commencement thereof, and which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld by
Landlord. Landlord may condition its consent on, among other things, its receipt, review and approval of complete plans and
specifications for such Alterations, the installation of additional risers, feeders and other appropriate equipment as well as utility
meters. The installation, maintenance, repair and replacement, as well as all charges in connection with all such meters and equipment
shall be at Tenant’s sole cost and expense. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall have the right without Landlord’s consent but
upon five (5) business days’ prior notice to Landlord to make cosmetic, non-structural Alterations to the Premises in accordance with
the terms of this Lease, provided that such Alterations do not (i) affect the exterior of the Premises or the Project (nor may such
Alterations be visible from street level on the exterior of the Building), (ii) affect the Project’s electrical, ventilation, plumbing,
elevator, mechanical, air conditioning or any other systems therein, or (iii) exceed $10,000 in the aggregate per year. The construction
of the initial improvements to the Premises shall be governed by the terms of the Tenant Work Letter, attached hereto as Exhibit B, and
not the terms of this Article 7.

7.4. Except to the extent Tenant requests and Landlord designates otherwise at the time Landlord approves
such Alterations, all or any part of the Alterations, whether made with or without the consent of Landlord, shall, at the election of
Landlord, either be removed by Tenant at its expense before the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease or shall remain upon the
Premises and be surrendered therewith at the Expiration Date or earlier termination of this Lease as the property of Landlord without
disturbance or injury. If Landlord requires the removal of all or part of any Alterations, Tenant, at its expense, shall immediately repair
any damage to the Premises or the Building caused by such removal. If Tenant fails to remove the Alterations upon Landlord’s request,
then Landlord may (but shall not be obligated to) remove them and the cost of removal and repair of any damage together with all other
damages which Landlord may suffer by reason of the failure of Tenant to remove Alterations, shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord upon
demand. Tenant shall not be entitled to any compensation from Landlord for any Alterations removed by Landlord or at Landlord’s
direction.

7.5. Tenant shall construct such Alterations and perform such repairs in conformance with any and all
applicable rules and regulations of any federal, state, county or municipal code or ordinance and pursuant to a valid building permit,
issued by the applicable municipality, in conformance with Landlord’s construction rules and regulations. Landlord’s consent to such
Alterations or Landlord’s approval of the plans, specifications, and working drawings for such Alterations will create no responsibility
or liability on the part of Landlord for the completeness, design, sufficiency or compliance with all laws, rules and regulations of



governmental agencies or authorities (including without limitation the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended from title
to time, and the provisions of that Act applicable to the Project or any part of it) with respect to such Alterations. All work with respect
to any Alterations must be done in a good and workmanlike manner and diligently prosecuted to completion to the end that the Premises
shall at all times be a complete unit except during the period of work. In performing the work of any such Alterations, Tenant shall
have the work performed in such manner as not to obstruct access to the Building or the Common Areas for any other tenant of the
Building, and as not to obstruct the business of Landlord or other tenants in the Building, or interfere with the labor force working in
the Building. Not less than fifteen nor more than twenty days prior to commencement of any Alterations, Tenant shall notify Landlord
in writing of the work commencement date so that Landlord may post notices of nonresponsibility about the Premises. Upon
completion of any Alterations, Tenant agrees to cause a Notice of Completion to be recorded in the office of the Recorder of the
County in which the Premises are located in accordance with Section 3093 of the Civil Code of the State of California or any successor
statute, and Tenant shall deliver to the Building management office a reproducible copy of the “as built” drawings of the Alterations, if
any.




7.6. The charges for work performed by a contractor selected by Landlord shall be deemed Rent under this
Lease, payable upon billing therefor, either periodically during construction or upon the substantial completion of such work, at
Landlord’s option. Upon completion of such work, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord evidence of payment, contractors’ affidavits and
full and final waivers of all liens for labor, services or materials. Tenant shall pay to Landlord a percentage of the cost of such work
sufficient to compensate Landlord for all overhead, general conditions, fees and other costs and expenses arising from Landlord’s
involvement with such work.

7.7. In the event that Tenant makes any Alterations, Tenant agrees to carry “Builder’s All Risk” insurance in
an amount approved by Landlord covering the construction of such Alterations, and such other insurance as Landlord may require, it
being understood and agreed that all of such Alterations shall be insured by Tenant pursuant to Article 9 of this Lease immediately
upon completion thereof. In addition, Landlord may, in its discretion, require Tenant to obtain a lien and completion bond or some
alternate form of security satisfactory to Landlord in an amount sufficient to ensure the lien-free completion of such Alterations and
naming Landlord a co-obligee.

8. FIRE OR CASUALTY DAMAGE

8.1. Repair of Damage to Premises by Landlord. If the Premises or any portion of the Project is damaged
by fire or other cause (the “Occurrence”) without the negligence or willful act of Tenant or its partners, trustees, officers, directors,
shareholders, members, beneficiaries, licensees, invitees, or any subtenants or subtenants’ agents, employees, contractors, or invitees,
servants, guests, or independent contractors (collectively, “Tenant Persons”), Landlord shall diligently, and as soon as practicable,
repair the damage; provided, however, that Landlord may elect not to rebuild or restore the Premises or any portion of the Project, and
instead terminate this Lease, by notifying Tenant in writing of such termination within ninety (90) days after the date on which
Landlord has actually discovered the full extent and nature of such damages, such notice to include a lease termination date and a date
for Tenant to vacate the Premises. Landlord may so elect to terminate this Lease only if the Building shall be damaged by fire or other
cause, whether or not the Premises are affected, and one or more of the following conditions is present: (i) repairs cannot reasonably be
completed within two hundred (200) days after the Occurrence; (ii) the Occurrence occurs during the last Lease Year; (iii) the holder
of any mortgage on the Building or ground lessor with respect to the Project shall require that the insurance proceeds or any portion
thereof be used to retire all or a portion of the mortgage debt, or shall terminate the ground lease, as the case may be; (iv) Landlord’s
insurer has not agreed that the damage is fully covered, except for deductible amounts, by Landlord’s insurance policies; or (v) in
Landlord’s sole discretion, twenty percent (20%) or more of the rentable floor area of the Project is unusable, unmarketable, damaged
or destroyed. If Landlord terminates this Lease, the Base Rent and Tenant’s Proportionate Share of increases in Operating Costs
(collectively, “Periodic Rent”) shall be apportioned and paid to the date of termination (subject to abatement as provided below). Such
repair or restoration by Landlord shall be to substantially the same condition of the base, shell, and core of the Premises and common
areas prior to the casualty, except for modifications required by zoning and building codes and other laws or by the holder of a
mortgage on the Building, or the lessor of a ground or underlying lease with respect to the Project or portion thereof, or any other
modifications to the Common Areas reasonably deemed desirable by Landlord, which are consistent with the character of the Project,
provided access to the Premises and any common restrooms serving the Premises shall not be materially impaired. Notwithstanding
any other provision of this Lease, upon the occurrence of any damage to the Premises, Tenant shall assign to Landlord (or to any party
designated by Landlord) all insurance proceeds payable to Tenant under Tenant’s insurance required under Section 9.1.2 of this Lease
that are attributable to the tenant improvements and Alterations, and Landlord shall repair any injury or damage to the tenant
improvements and Alterations installed in the Premises and shall return such tenant improvements to their condition prior to the
Occurrence; provided that if the cost of such repair by Landlord exceeds the amount of insurance proceeds received by Landlord from
Tenant’s insurance carrier, as assigned by Tenant, the cost of such repairs shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord prior to Landlord’s
repair of the damage. In connection with such repairs and replacements, Tenant shall, prior to the commencement of construction,
submit to Landlord, for Landlord’s review and approval, all plans, specifications and working drawings relating thereto, and Landlord
shall select the contractors to perform such improvement work.

8.2. Termination By Either Party.

8.2.1. If Landlord does not elect to terminate this Lease under the terms of Section 8.1, but the
damage required to be repaired by Landlord is not repaired by the end of the 200 Day Period, then either Landlord or Tenant (subject to
Section 8.2.2), within thirty (30) days after the end of the 200 Day Period, may terminate this Lease by written notice to the other
party, in which event this Lease shall terminate as of the date of receipt of the notice, and the Periodic Rent shall be apportioned and
paid to the date of termination (subject to abatement as provided below). The “200 Day Period” shall mean the period beginning on the
date of the Occurrence and ending two hundred (200) days from the date of the Occurrence, provided that such 200 Day Period shall
not be extended for any delays caused by Force Majeure. Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this Section 8.2.1, if (a)
Landlord has not elected to terminate this Lease pursuant to the terms of Section 8.1, and (b) Landlord is proceeding to complete the
repairs, then neither party shall have the right to terminate this Lease if, before the end of the 200 Day Period, Landlord, at Landlord’s
sole option, gives written notice to Tenant that the repairs will be completed within thirty (30) days after the end of the 200 Day Period,
and the repairs are actually completed within such thirty day period. If the repairs are not completed within thirty days after the end of
the 200 Day Period, then either party may terminate this Lease by written notice to the other party. Such notice of termination shall be
given within sixty (60) days after the end of the 200 Day Period, and shall be effective upon receipt thereof by the other party to this
Lease.




8.2.2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8.2.1, Tenant shall have the right to terminate this
Lease under Section 8.2.1 only if each of the following conditions is satisfied: (a) the damage to the Project by fire or other casualty
was not caused by the gross negligence or intentional act of Tenant Persons; (b) there is then no uncured Event of Default by Tenant;
and (c) as a result of the damage, Tenant cannot reasonably conduct business from the Premises.

8.3. Rent Abatement. Subject to the last sentence of this Section 8.3, during the period that the damaged
portion of the Premises is rendered untenantable by the damage, Periodic Rent shall be reduced by the ratio that the rentable square
footage of the Premises thereby rendered untenantable bears to the total rentable square footage of the Premises, provided that (i)
Tenant does not occupy or use such untenantable portion of the Premises during such rent abatement period, and (ii) Tenant shall, as
soon as reasonably practicable after the event purportedly giving rise to rent abatement, give written notice to Landlord of Tenant’s
claim for rent abatement and the basis therefor, including the date when Tenant vacated the Premises or portion thereof as a result of
the Occurrence. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, if the damage was the consequence of the fault or negligence of any of the
Tenant Persons, then the Periodic Rent shall be abated only to the extent Landlord actually receives rental or business interruption
proceeds allocated to the Periodic Rent for the Premises. If the rent abatement period expressly provided in this Section 8.3 is for a
period of less than five days, then Periodic Rent for the first such five days shall be abated only to the extent that Landlord actually
receives rental or business interruption proceeds allocable to such Periodic Rent to be abated.

8.4. Tenant Liability for Damages. Subject to Section 8.5, all injury or damage to the Premises or the
Building resulting from the gross negligence or intentional acts or misconduct of any Tenant Persons shall be repaired at the sole cost
of Tenant, payable on demand by Landlord, or at Landlord’s option, Landlord may require Tenant to perform such repairs or portion
thereof and Periodic Rent shall not abate. If Landlord shall so elect, Landlord shall have the right to make repairs to the standard tenant
improvements, not including any tenant extras, Alterations, or personal property, and any expense incurred by Landlord, together with
interest thereon at the rate of ten percent (10%) per year shall be paid by Tenant upon demand.

8.5. Release to Extent of Insurance Proceeds. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Lease, and
provided that any applicable insurance coverage is not thereby invalidated, limited, or made more expensive, Tenant shall be relieved
from the obligation to repair or pay for physical injury or damage to the Project resulting from the negligence, gross negligence or
intentional act or misconduct of any of Tenant Persons only to the extent that Landlord actually receives insurance proceeds for
complete payment in full for such repairs from Tenant’s or Landlord’s insurance.

8.6. Insurance Deductible. Notwithstanding the preceding provisions in this Article 8 concerning abatement
of Periodic Rent, Tenant shall not be relieved from its obligation to pay Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the insurance deductibles
under insurance policies carried by Landlord.

8.7. Waiver of Statutes. The provisions of this Lease, including, without limitation, this Article 8, constitute
an express agreement between Landlord and Tenant with respect to any and all damage to, or destruction of, all or any part of the
Premises, the Building, or any other portion of the Project, and any statute or regulation of the State in which the Building is located,
including, without limitation, Sections 1932(2) and 1933(4) of the California Civil Code, with respect to any rights or obligations
concerning damage or destruction in the absence of an express agreement between the parties, and any other such statute or regulation
which may hereafter be in effect, shall have no application to this Lease or any damage or destruction to all or any part of the Premises,
the Building, or any other portion of the Project.

9. INSURANCE
9.1. Tenant shall during the entire Term maintain the following insurance coverage:
9.1.1. Commercial General Liability Insurance for personal injury and property damage claims

arising out of Tenant’s occupation or use of the Premises and from its business operations, and including liability arising under any
indemnity set forth in this Lease in amounts of not less than $2 million for each occurrence and $3 million for all occurrences each
year.

9.1.2. Property damage insurance covering all Tenant’s furniture, trade fixtures, office equipment,
merchandise and other property in the Premises and all original and later-installed tenant improvements in the Premises (including,
without limitation, the Tenant Improvements). This insurance shall be a “Causes of Loss - Special Form” (formerly known as “All
Risk™) policy covering the full replacement cost of the items covered and including vandalism, malicious mischief, earthquake
sprinkler leakage coverages.




9.13. All required workers’ compensation or other similar insurance pursuant to all applicable state
and local statutes and regulations.

9.1.4. Adequate business interruption insurance to cover a period of not less than twelve (12)
months.

9.2. All insurance provided by Tenant under this Lease shall be coordinated with any preceding, concurrent
or subsequent, occurrence or claims made insurance, in such a manner as to avoid any gap in coverage against claims arising out of
occurrences, conduct or events which take place during the period beginning on the Lease Date and ending on termination of this
Lease.

9.3. Landlord makes no representation that the insurance coverage required of Tenant provides adequate
coverage for Tenant’s needs or for its obligations under this Lease. Tenant shall not do or permit to be done anything which shall cause
the cancellation of, invalidate, increase the rate of, or otherwise adversely affect, the insurance policies referred to in this Article 9.

9.4. Landlord shall not be deemed to have waived or reduced any of the insurance coverage requirements for
Tenant except by an express written agreement to that effect. The receipt by Landlord or its contractors or agents of insurance policies,
certificates, letters, or other correspondence, documents or information which do not conform to the insurance requirements of this
Lease, or the failure of Landlord to receive policies, certificates, or other documentation required by this Article 9, shall not be deemed
to be Landlord’s consent to a waiver or reduction of any such requirements, despite any failure by Landlord to object to same at the
time of receipt (or lack of receipt), or thereafter. Any reduction, modification, or waiver of any of Tenant’s insurance requirements
under this Lease may be made only by a written document signed by Landlord and Tenant which expressly amends the pertinent
described portions of this Lease.

9.5. Where Landlord provides written notice to Tenant regarding Tenant’s failure to maintain the insurance
required of Tenant in this Article 9 and Tenant fails to obtain such insurance within two (2) business days after receipt of such notice,
Landlord shall have the right and option, but not the obligation, to maintain any or all of the insurance which is required in Section 9.1
to be provided by Tenant if Tenant fails to maintain the insurance required of Tenant in this Article 9. All costs of Tenant’s insurance
provided by the Landlord shall be obtained at Tenant’s expense.

9.6. The minimum insurance requirements set forth in this Lease shall not limit the liability of Tenant under
this Lease. The Landlord, and any parties specified by the Landlord, shall be named as additional insureds under the Tenant’s
insurance. All insurance companies providing insurance pursuant to this Article shall be rated at least A-XII in Best’s Key Rating
Guide and shall be otherwise reasonably acceptable to Landlord and licensed and qualified to do business in the State of California.
Insurance provided by the Tenant shall be primary as to all covered claims and any insurance carried by Landlord is excess and is non-
contributing. Each Tenant’s insurance policy must not be cancelable or modifiable except upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to
Landlord and any specified mortgagee of Landlord. The insurance must also contain a severability of interest clause acceptable to
Landlord. Copies of policies or original certificates of insurance with respect to each policy shall be delivered to the Landlord prior to
the Commencement Date, and thereafter, at least thirty (30) days before the expiration of each existing policy. Any insurance required
hereunder of Tenant may be provided with blanket insurance policy(ies) insuring Tenant at locations in addition to the Premises, so
long as such blanket policy(ies) expressly affords the coverage required of Tenant under this Lease. Tenant shall take all necessary
steps so as to prevent the actual effective aggregate coverage of such blanket policy(ies) from ever being eroded at any time by claims,
or reserves therefor established by the insurer, so that the minimum coverage afforded to Landlord required by this Lease shall at all
times remain in effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord shall obtain and keep in force during the term of this Lease in
customary amounts for buildings comparable to the Building a “Causes of Loss - Special Form” insurance policy covering loss or
damage to the Building.

9.7. Landlord has the right at any time, but not the obligation, to reasonably change, cancel, decrease or
increase any insurance required or specified under this Lease. Landlord at its option may obtain any of the required insurance directly
or through umbrella policies covering the Building and other assets owned by Landlord.

9.8. Landlord and Tenant agree to request that their respective insurance companies issuing property damage
insurance waive any rights of subrogation that such companies may have against Landlord or Tenant, as the case may be, so long as
the insurance carried by Landlord or Tenant, respectively, is not invalidated thereby. As long as such waivers of subrogation are
contained in their respective insurance policies, Landlord and Tenant hereby waive any right that either may have against the other on
account of any loss or damage to their respective property to the extent such loss or damage is actually insured under policies of
insurance for fire and all risk coverage, theft, public liability, or other similar insurance.

9.9. Tenant shall not conduct or permit to be conducted by its employees, agents, guests or invitees any
activity, or place any equipment in or about the Premises or the Building that will in any way increase the cost of fire insurance or
other Landlord insurance on the Building. If any increase in the cost of fire insurance or other insurance is stated by any insurance
company or by the applicable Insurance Rating Bureau, if any, to be due to any activity or equipment of Tenant in or about the
Premises or the Building, such statement shall be conclusive evidence that the increase in such cost is due to such activity or equipment
and, as a result thereof, Tenant shall be liable for the amount of such increase. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for such amount upon
written demand from Landlord and any such sum shall be considered additional Rent payable hereunder. Tenant, at its sole expense,



shall comply with any and all requirements of any insurance organization or company necessary for the maintenance of reasonable fire
and public liability insurance covering the Premises and the Building.




10. WAIVER AND INDEMNIFICATION

To the extent not prohibited by law, Landlord, its partners, trustees, ancillary trustees and their respective officers,
directors, shareholders, members, beneficiaries, agents, servants, employees, and independent contractors (collectively, “Landlord
Persons”) shall not be liable for any damage either to person or property or resulting from the loss of use thereof, which damage is
sustained by Tenant or by other persons claiming through Tenant except for damage arising solely from the gross negligence or
intentional misconduct of Landlord Persons. Tenant agrees to protect, indemnify, defend, and hold Landlord harmless from all claims
and all costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, expenses and liabilities, except those caused solely by Landlord’s negligence, in any
way arising or resulting from (a) any accident, injury, death, loss or damage to any person or to any property including, without
limitation, the person and property of Tenant and its employees, agents, officers, guests, and all other persons at any time in the
Building or the Premises or the Common Areas, (b) the occupancy or use of the Premises by the Tenant, or (c) any act or omission or
negligence of Tenant or any agent, licensee, or invitee of Tenant, or its contractors, employees, or any subtenant or subtenant’s agents,
employees, contractors, or invitees. The indemnification obligations of Tenant under this Lease shall survive the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease.

11. USE OF PREMISES

11.1. The Premises are leased to Tenant for the sole purpose set forth in Section 1.10 and Tenant shall not use
or permit the Premises to be used for any other purposes without the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent may be withheld
in Landlord’s sole and absolute discretion. Tenant shall not allow occupancy density of use of the Premises which is greater than the
average density of the other tenants of the Building. Tenant further covenants and agrees that it shall not use, or permit any person or
persons to use, the Premises or any part thereof for any use or purpose contrary to the rules and regulations, attached hereto as Exhibit
D, or in violation of the laws of the United States of America, the State of California, or the ordinances, regulations or requirements of
the local municipal or county governing body or other lawful authorities having jurisdiction over the Building. Landlord shall not be
responsible to Tenant for the nonperformance of any of such rules and regulations by or otherwise with respect to the acts or omissions
of any other tenants, guests or occupants of the Building.

11.2. Tenant shall comply with all recorded covenants, conditions, and restrictions now or hereafter affecting
the real property underlying the Project. Tenant shall, at its expense, obtain any governmental permits or approvals required for
Tenant’s intended use of the Premises except as may be expressly provided in Exhibit B. The obtaining of any such permits or
approvals is not a condition to any of Tenant’s obligations under this Lease. Tenant acknowledges that except as expressly stated in this
Lease, neither Landlord nor Landlord’s agent has made any representation or warranty, whether express or implied, as to the Premises,
including, without limitation, the suitability of the Premises for the conduct of Tenant’s business. Except as otherwise expressly
provided in this Lease, including, without limitation, Section 6 of this Lease, Tenant accepts the Premises in their AS IS condition as of
the Lease Date, with all faults and defects. Tenant has been advised by Landlord to conduct its own investigation of the suitability of
the Premises for Tenant’s intended use, including, without limitation, a careful inspection of the Premises, a review of all applicable
laws and ordinances, and inquiries of all applicable government agencies before executing this Lease.

12. SIGNS

Landlord retains absolute control over the exterior appearance of the Building and Project and the exterior
appearance of the Premises as viewed from the public halls and public areas. Tenant will not install, or permit to be installed, any
drapes, furnishings, signs, lettering, designs, advertising or any items that will in any way alter the exterior appearance of the Building
or the exterior appearance of the Premises as viewed from the public halls and public areas. Any sign, advertising, design, or lettering
installed by Tenant shall be considered an Alteration (as defined in Section 7.3) and shall be subject to the provisions of Article 7.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, Landlord shall (a) maintain building standard listings on the
Building directory for Tenant, and (b) install Building standard suite signage at the entrance to the Premises. All signage rights granted
to Tenant under this Lease are personal, and may not be assigned or transferred without Landlord’s prior written consent, which
consent Landlord may withhold in its sole discretion.

13. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

13.1. Tenant shall not assign, transfer, mortgage or otherwise encumber this Lease or sublet or rent (or permit
a third party to occupy or use) (collectively, a “Transfer”) the Premises, or any part thereof, nor shall any Transfer of this Lease or the
right of occupancy be effected by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of Landlord which shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed; provided, however, that the parties hereby agree that it shall be deemed to be reasonable under this
Lease and under any applicable law for Landlord to withhold consent to any proposed Transfer where, without limitation as to other
reasonable grounds for withholding consent: (i) the transferee is of a character or reputation or engaged in a business which is not
consistent with the quality of the Building; (ii) the transferee is either a governmental agency or instrumentality thereof; (iii) the
transferee is not a party of reasonable financial worth and/or financial stability in light of the responsibilities involved under this Lease
on the date consent is requested; (iv) the Transfer may result in a significant increase in the use of the utilities, services or Common
Areas of the Project; (v) the proposed assignee or sublessee is an existing tenant of the Building or is currently negotiating with
Landlord for space in the Building, (vi) the proposed Transfer would cause a violation of another lease for space in the Building, or
would give an occupant of the Building a right to cancel its lease, or (vii) Tenant has committed an Event of Default which has not
been cured. For purposes of the foregoing prohibitions, a transfer at any one time or from time to time of fifty percent (50%) or more
of an interest in Tenant (whether stock, partnership interest or other form of ownership or control) by any person(s) or entity(ties)



having an interest in ownership or control of Tenant at the Lease Date shall be deemed to be a Transfer of this Lease. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, however, neither an assignment of the Premises to a transferee which is the resulting entity of a merger or consolidation
of Tenant with another entity, nor an assignment or subletting of all or a portion of the Premises to an affiliate of Tenant (an entity
which is controlled by, controls, or is under common control with, Tenant) (each, a “Permitted Transferee”), shall be deemed a
Transfer, provided that Tenant notifies Landlord in writing at least thirty days in advance of any such assignment or sublease, and
promptly supplies Landlord with any documents or information reasonably requested by Landlord regarding such Transfer or
transferee, that the tangible net worth of such transferee is not less than Tenant’s net worth as of the date of this Lease, and that such
assignment or sublease is not a subterfuge by Tenant to avoid its obligations under this Lease. In no event shall Tenant be deemed to
have been released under this Lease in the event of such transfer and Tenant shall remain primarily liable hereunder. Notwithstanding
any provision of this Lease, or any present or future law to the contrary, Landlord and Tenant hereby expressly agree that if a court of
competent jurisdiction determines that Landlord unreasonably withheld consent to a proposed Transfer, then Tenant’s sole and
exclusive remedy for such breach by Landlord shall be limited to termination of this Lease as of the date of such court determination,
and Tenant hereby expressly waives the right to recover any monetary damages of whatever kind for such breach. If Landlord consents
to the proposed Transfer, (a) the initial Tenant, subsequent transferees, and all guarantors shall remain liable under this Lease, and
Tenant shall obtain the prior written consent of any guarantor to such Transfer in a form acceptable to Landlord; and (b) each of the
transferees shall agree in a writing acceptable to Landlord to assume and be bound by all of the terms and conditions of this Lease. Any
Transfer without Landlord’s written consent shall be voidable by Landlord and, at Landlord’s election, constitute an “Event of
Default,” as that term is defined in Article 24 of this Lease. Neither the consent by Landlord to any Transfer nor the collection or
acceptance by Landlord of Rent from any assignee, subtenant or occupant shall be construed as a waiver or release of the initial Tenant
or any guarantor from the terms and conditions of this Lease or relieve Tenant or any subtenant, assignee or other party from obtaining
the consent in writing of Landlord to any further Transfer. Tenant hereby assigns to Landlord the Rent and other sums due from any
subtenant, assignee or other occupant of the Premises and hereby authorizes and directs each such subtenant, assignee or other
occupant to pay such rent or other sums directly to Landlord; provided, however, that until the occurrence of an Event of Default,
Tenant shall have the license to continue collecting such rent and other sums.




If Landlord consents to a Transfer under this Section 13.1, Tenant will pay Landlord’s reasonable processing costs
and attorneys’ fees incurred in giving such consent, provided that in no event shall such costs and fees exceed $2,000.00 with respect to
any one Transfer. If, for any proposed Transfer, Tenant contracts to receive total Rent or other consideration exceeding the total Rent
called for hereunder (prorated by the ratio that the assignment or sublease term and square footage bears to the term and square footage
of this Lease) after deduction (amortized over the term of the assignment or sublease) of Tenant’s reasonable costs for tenant
improvements, Tenant will pay the excess to Landlord as additional Rent promptly upon receipt.

13.2. In the event of a proposed assignment or subletting of more than fifty-percent (50%) of the Premises,
Landlord shall also have the right, by notice to Tenant, to terminate this Lease in the event of an assignment as to all of the Premises
and, in the event of a sublease, as to the subleased portion of the Premises and to require that all or part, as the case may be, of the
Premises be surrendered to Landlord for the balance of the Term (collectively “Recapture the Lease”). Notwithstanding the previous
sentence, if, before entering into a proposed assignment or sublease, Tenant gives written notice to Landlord of Tenant’s intention to
sublease or assign, and Landlord does not, within fifteen (15) business days after Landlord’s actual receipt of such written notice and
all information requested by Landlord relating to such proposed assignment or subletting, provide written notice to Tenant that
Landlord intends to Recapture the Lease, then Landlord may not Recapture the Lease by reason of such proposed assignment or
subletting, provided that: (i) if Landlord consents to the proposed assignment or subletting, Tenant shall complete such assignment or
sublease within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of such fifteen (15) day period, and (ii) nothing contained in this Section
13.2 shall be deemed to waive any of Landlord’s rights to approve or disapprove a Transfer as provided in Section 13.1 of this Lease.
If, within fifteen (15) business days after Landlord’s actual receipt of written notice of Tenant’s intention to sublease or assign,
Landlord informs Tenant that Landlord intends to Recapture the Lease, then Tenant shall have the option to rescind its intention to
sublease or assign the Premises by providing Landlord with written notice within ten (10) business days after Tenant’s receipt of
Landlord’s written notice regarding its intention to Recapture the Lease, and Landlord shall not have the right to Recapture the Lease.
This Section 13.2 shall not apply to Permitted Transferees.

14. EMINENT DOMAIN

In the event any portion of the Premises is taken from Tenant under eminent domain proceedings, Tenant shall have
no right, title or interest in any award made for such taking, except for any separate award for fixtures and improvements installed by
Tenant and which have not become the property of Landlord. If ten percent (10%) or more of the Premises or Building shall be taken
by power of eminent domain or condemned by any competent authority for any public or quasi-public use or purpose, or if Landlord
shall grant a deed or other instrument in lieu of such taking by eminent domain or condemnation, Landlord shall have the option to
terminate this Lease upon ninety (90) days notice, provided such notice is given no later than one hundred eighty (180) days after the
date of such taking, condemnation, reconfiguration, vacation, deed or other instrument. If ten percent (10%) or more of the Premises
shall be taken or access to the Premises is substantially impaired, Tenant shall have the option to terminate this Lease upon ninety (90)
days notice, provided such notice is given no later than sixty (60) days after the date of such taking, condemnation, reconfiguration,
vacation, deed or other instrument. Tenant hereby waives any and all rights it might otherwise have pursuant to Section 1265.130 of
the California Code of Civil Procedure.




15. WAIVER AND SEVERABILITY

15.1. The consent of Landlord in any instance to any variation of the terms of this Lease, or the receipt of
Rent with knowledge of any breach, shall not be deemed to be a waiver as to any breach of any Lease covenant or condition, nor shall
any waiver occur to any provision of this Lease except in writing, signed by Landlord or Landlord’s authorized agent. The waiver or
relinquishment by Landlord of any right or power contained in this Lease at any one time or times shall not be considered a waiver or
relinquishment of any right or power at any other time or times. If Tenant tenders payment to Landlord of an amount which is less than
the Rent then due to Landlord, at Landlord’s option, Landlord may reject such tender, and such tender shall be void and of no effect, or
Landlord may accept such tender, without prejudice to Landlord’s right to demand the balance due. This Lease constitutes the entire
agreement of the parties and supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous written or oral negotiations, correspondence,
understandings and agreements between the parties respecting the subject matter hereof. No supplement, modification or amendment
to this Lease shall be binding unless executed in writing by both parties.

15.2. If any term or provision of this Lease or any application shall be invalid or unenforceable, then the
remaining terms and provisions of this Lease shall not be affected.

16. USE OF COMMON FACILITIES

As used in this Lease, “Common Areas” shall mean all areas within the Project which are available for the common
use of tenants of the Project and which are not leased or held for the exclusive use of Tenant or any other tenant. Common Areas
include without limitation parking areas and driveways, sidewalks, loading areas, lobbies, stairways, elevators, access road, corridors,
landscaped and planted areas. Use of the Common Areas may be restricted by Landlord from time to time for purposes of repairs or
renovations.

17. SERVICES

Tenant shall contract for and pay directly (at Tenant’s sole cost and expense) when due, all services and utilities to
the Premises, including, but not limited to, heating, ventilation and air-conditioning, electricity, water, gas, light, power, trash pick-up,
sewer, telephone, sprinkler charges, janitorial and interior security services and all other utility services supplied to the Premises, and
all taxes and surcharges thereon, together with maintenance charges related thereto. If any such services are not separately billed or
metered to Tenant, the cost of all services shall be included within Operating Costs, unless charged directly (and not as a part of
Operating Costs) to Tenant. Landlord reserves the right to separately meter or monitor any utility services provided to the Premises.
The cost of any meter shall be borne by Tenant. Landlord shall be under no responsibility or liability for failure or interruption in such
services caused by breakage, accident, strikes, repairs or for any other causes, nor in any event for any indirect or consequential
damages; and such failure or interruption shall not be construed as an eviction of Tenant, nor work an abatement of Rent, nor render
Landlord liable in damages, nor release Tenant from prompt fulfillment of any of the covenants under this Lease.

18. ENTRY OF LANDLORD

Landlord reserves the right to enter upon the Premises at all reasonable times and reserves the right, during the last
eight (8) months of the Term where Tenant has not delivered an Option Notice pursuant to Section 3.2.1(i) or during the last six (6)
months of the Term where Tenant has not delivered a written notice pursuant to Section 3.2.1(iii), to show the Premises at reasonable
times to prospective tenants and to affix for lease/rent signs to the Building at the Landlord’s discretion. Landlord may, upon 24 hours
prior notice (provided that no prior notice is required in the event of an emergency), enter the Premises at any time for purposes of
repair or maintenance of the Premises or any portion of the Project, or for the health, safety or protection of any person or property. If
deemed appropriate by Landlord for the health, safety or protection of person or property, Tenant shall, upon notice from Landlord,
vacate the Premises as Landlord directs.

19. INTENTIONALLY DELETED

20. SUBORDINATION AND ATTORNMENT

This Lease is subject and subordinate to all ground or underlying leases and to any first mortgage(s) which may now
or hereafter affect those leases or the land and to all renewals, modifications, consolidations, replacements and extensions thereof. This
subordination shall be self-operative; however, Tenant shall execute promptly any instrument that Landlord or any first mortgagee may
request confirming subordination. Tenant hereby constitutes and appoints Landlord as Tenant’s attorney-in-fact to execute any such
instrument on behalf of Tenant. Before any foreclosure sale under a mortgage, the mortgagee shall have the right to subordinate the
mortgage to this Lease, and, in the event of a foreclosure, this Lease may continue in full force and effect and Tenant shall attorn to and
recognize as its landlord the purchaser of Landlord’s interest under this Lease. Tenant shall, upon the request of a mortgagee or
purchaser at foreclosure, execute, acknowledge and deliver any instrument that has for its purpose and effect the subordination of the
lien of any mortgage to this Lease or Tenant’s attornment to the purchaser.




21. ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES

Tenant shall at any time upon not less than ten (10) business days prior written notice from Landlord execute,
acknowledge and deliver to Landlord a statement in writing (i) certifying that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or, if
modified, stating the nature of such modification and certifying that this Lease, as so modified, is in full force and effect) and the date
to which the Periodic Rent is paid in advance, if any, (ii) acknowledging that there are not, to Tenant’s knowledge, any uncured
Landlord defaults, or specifying such defaults if any are claimed, and (iii) including any information, certification or acknowledgement
as may be reasonably requested by Landlord. Any such statement may be conclusively relied upon by a prospective purchaser or
encumbrancer of the Premises. Tenant’s failure to deliver this statement within such time shall be conclusive upon Tenant (i) that this
Lease is in full force, without modification except as may be represented by Landlord, (ii) that there are no uncured defaults in
Landlord’s performance, and (iii) that not more than one month’s Base Rent has been paid in advance. If Landlord desires to finance or
refinance the Project, or any part thereof, Tenant agrees to deliver to any lender designated by Landlord such financial statements or
other information concerning Tenant as may be reasonably required by that lender, including, without limitation, the past three years’
financial statements. All such financial statements shall be received by Landlord in confidence and shall be used only for the specified
purposes.

22. BUILDING RULES AND REGULATIONS

Tenant agrees to abide by all reasonable rules and regulations of the Building imposed by Landlord. These rules and
regulations, presented as Exhibit D attached hereto, are imposed for the cleanliness, good appearance, proper maintenance, good order
and reasonable use of the Premises and the Building, and as may be reasonably necessary for the proper enjoyment of the Building by
all tenants and their clients, customers and employees. The rules and regulations may be reasonably changed from time to time by the
Landlord on reasonable notice to Tenant. Landlord shall not be responsible to Tenant for the nonperformance of any rules and
regulations by or otherwise with respect to the acts or omissions of any other tenant or occupants of the Project.

23. NOTICES

All notices or other communications between the parties shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly given, if
delivered in person, or upon the earlier of receipt, if mailed by certified or registered mail, or three (3) days after certified or registered
mailing, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or upon confirmation of delivery by an overnight delivery service (such as Federal
Express or Overnite Express), addressed and sent to the parties at their addresses set forth in Sections 1.15 and 1.16. Landlord and
Tenant may from time to time by written notice to the other designate another address for receipt of future notices.

24. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Each of the following shall constitute an “Event of Default:” (i) Tenant fails to pay Rent within five (5) days after
receipt of written notice from Landlord that such amount is due, (ii) Tenant fails to observe or perform any other Lease term, condition,
obligation or covenant binding upon, or required of Tenant within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from Landlord;
provided, however, if the nature of such default is such that the same cannot be reasonably cured within a thirty (30) day period (unless
such failure to perform is materially and adversely affecting other tenants in the Building), Tenant shall not be deemed to be in default
if Tenant diligently commences such cure within such period and thereafter diligently proceeds to rectify and cure said default, but in
no event shall such period exceed ninety (90) days, (iii) Tenant abandons the Premises; (iv) Tenant or any guarantor of this Lease
makes or consents to a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a common law composition of creditors, or a receiver of the
Premises or all or substantially all of Tenant’s or guarantor’s assets is appointed, (v) Tenant or any guarantor files a voluntary petition
in any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding, or an involuntary petition in any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding is filed against
Tenant or any guarantor, and is not discharged by Tenant or the guarantor within sixty (60) days, (vi) any guarantor repudiates or
breaches its guaranty in any way, or (vii) there is a Transfer (as defined in Article 13) of the Premises or the Lease by Tenant, without
the prior written consent of Landlord as required by Article 13.

25. LANDLORD’S REMEDIES

25.1. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Landlord, at its option, without further notice or demand
to Tenant, shall have in addition to all other rights and remedies provided in this Lease, at law or in equity, the option to pursue any one
or more of the following remedies, each and all of which shall be cumulative and nonexclusive, without any notice or demand
whatsoever.

25.1.1. Terminate this Lease, in which event Tenant shall immediately surrender the Premises to
Landlord, and if Tenant fails to do so, Landlord may, without prejudice to any other remedy which it may have for possession or
arrearages in Rent, enter upon and take possession of the Premises and expel or remove Tenant and any other person who may be
occupying the Premises or any part thereof, without being liable for prosecution or any claim or damages therefor; and Landlord may
recover from Tenant the following:

25.1.1.1. The worth at the time of award of any unpaid rent which has been earned at the
time of such termination; plus






25.1.1.2. The worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent which
would have been earned after termination until the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that Tenant proves could have
been reasonably avoided; plus

25.1.1.3. The worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent for the
balance of the Term after the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that Tenant proves could have been reasonably
avoided; plus

25.1.1.4. Any other amount necessary to compensate Landlord for all the detriment
proximately caused by Tenant’s failure to perform its obligations under this Lease or which in the ordinary course of things would be
likely to result therefrom, specifically including but not limited to, brokerage commissions and advertising expenses incurred, expenses
of remodeling the Premises or any portion thereof for a new tenant, whether for the same or a different use, and any special concessions
made to obtain a new tenant; and

25.1.1.5. At Landlord’s election, such other amounts in addition to or in lieu of the
foregoing as may be permitted from time to time by applicable law.

The term “rent” as used in this Section 25.1 shall be deemed to be and to mean all sums of every nature
required to be paid by Tenant pursuant to the terms of this Lease, whether to Landlord or to others, including, without limitation, late
charges and interest. As used in Sections 25.1.1(i) and (ii), above, the “worth at the time of award” shall be computed by allowing
interest at the rate set forth in Section 25.3, below, but in no case greater than the maximum amount of such interest permitted by law.
As used in Section 25.1.1(iii) above, the “worth at the time of award” shall be computed by discounting such amount at the discount
rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco at the time of award plus one percent (1%).

25.1.2. Landlord shall have the remedy described in California Civil Code Section 1951.4 (lessor
may continue lease in effect after lessee’s breach and abandonment and recover rent as it becomes due, if lessee has the right to sublet
or assign, subject only to reasonable limitations). Accordingly, if Landlord does not elect to terminate this Lease on account of any
default by Tenant, Landlord may, from time to time, without terminating this Lease, enforce all of its rights and remedies under this
Lease, including the right to recover all rent as it becomes due.

25.2. Whether or not Landlord elects to terminate this Lease on account of any default by Tenant, as set forth
in this Article 25, Landlord shall have the right to terminate any and all subleases, licenses, concessions or other consensual
arrangements for possession entered into by Tenant and affecting the Premises or may, in Landlord’s sole discretion, succeed to
Tenant’s interest in such subleases, licenses, concessions or arrangements. In the event of Landlord’s election to succeed to Tenant’s
interest in any such subleases, licenses, concessions or arrangements, Tenant shall, as of the date of notice by Landlord of such
election, have no further right to or interest in the rent or other consideration receivable thereunder.

25.3. If Tenant fails to pay any Rent within five (5) days after the Rent becomes due and payable, Tenant
shall pay to Landlord a late charge of ten percent (10%) of the amount of overdue Rent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall
not be obligated to pay such late charge for the first such late payment in any twelve (12) month period, provided that such payment is
made within five (5) days after receipt of written notice from Landlord that such amount was not paid when due. In addition, any late
Rent payment shall bear interest from the date that Rent became due and payable to the date of payment by Tenant at the interest rate
of ten percent (10%) per annum, provided that in no case shall such rate be higher than the highest rate permitted by applicable law.
Late charges and interest shall be due and payable within two (2) days after written demand from Landlord.

26. RIGHT OF LANDLORD TO CURE TENANT’S DEFAULT

If an Event of Default occurs, then Landlord may (but shall not be obligated to) make such payment or do such act to
cure the Event of Default, and charge the expense, together with interest, at the interest rate set forth in Section 25.3, to Tenant.
Payment for the cure shall be due and payable by the Tenant upon demand; however, the making of any payment or the taking of such
action by Landlord shall not be deemed to cure the Event of Default or to stop Landlord from the pursuit of any remedy to which
Landlord would otherwise be entitled.

27. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

Tenant shall not do anything or suffer anything to be done in or about the Premises which will in any way conflict
with any law, statute, ordinance or other governmental rule, regulation or requirement now in force or which may hereafter be enacted
or promulgated. At its sole cost and expense, Tenant shall promptly comply with all such governmental measures, other than the
making of structural changes or changes to the Building’s life safety system. Should any standard or regulation now or hereafter be
imposed on Landlord or Tenant by a state, federal or local governmental body charged with the establishment, regulation and
enforcement of occupational, health or safety standards for employers, employees, landlords or tenants, then Tenant agrees, at its sole
cost and expense, to comply promptly with such standards or regulations. The judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction or the
admission of Tenant in any judicial action, regardless of whether Landlord is a party thereto, that Tenant has violated any of said
governmental measures, shall be conclusive of that fact as between Landlord and Tenant.






28. BENEFIT

Subject to the provisions of Article 13 hereof, the rights, duties and liabilities created hereunder shall inure to the
benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto, their heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.

29. PROHIBITION AGAINST RECORDING

Except as provided in this Lease, neither this Lease, nor any memorandum, affidavit or other writing with respect
thereto, shall be recorded by Tenant or by anyone acting through, under, or on behalf of Tenant, and the recording thereof in violation
of this provision shall make this Lease null and void at Landlord’s election.

30. TRANSFER OF LANDLORD’S INTEREST

Tenant acknowledges that Landlord has the right to transfer all or any portion of its interest in the Project and
Building and in this Lease and Tenant agrees that in the event of any such transfer and a transfer of the security deposit and the express
assumption by the assignee of all of Landlord’s obligations under this Lease, Landlord shall automatically be released from all liability
under this Lease and Tenant agrees to look solely to such transferee for the performance of Landlord’s obligations hereunder after the
date of transfer. Tenant further acknowledges that Landlord may assign its interest in this Lease to a mortgage lender as additional
security and agrees that such an assignment shall not release Landlord from its obligations hereunder and that Tenant shall continue to
look to Landlord for the performance of its obligations hereunder.

31. FORCE MAJEURE

Any prevention, delay or stoppage due to strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, acts of God, inability to obtain services,
labor or materials or reasonable substitutes therefore, governmental actions, civil commotions, fire or other casualty, and other causes
beyond the reasonable control of the party obligated to perform (collectively, the “Force Majeure”), except with respect to the
obligations imposed with regard to Rent and other charges to be paid by Tenant pursuant to this Lease, and Tenant’s obligations under
Articles 10, 11 and 27 of this Lease notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, shall excuse the performance of
such party for a period equal to any such prevention, delay, or stoppage and, therefore, if this Lease specifies a time period for
performance of an obligation of either party, that time period shall be extended by the period of any delay in such party’s performance
caused by a Force Majeure.

32. LANDLORD’S LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

It is expressly understood and agreed that notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, and notwithstanding
any applicable law to the contrary, the liability of Landlord hereunder (including any successor landlord) and any recourse by Tenant
against Landlord shall be limited solely and exclusively to the interest of Landlord in and to the Premises, and neither Landlord, nor
any of its constituent partners, shall have any personal liability therefor, and Tenant hereby expressly waives and releases such personal
liability on behalf of itself and all persons claiming by, through or under Tenant. Under no circumstances shall Landlord be liable for
special damages, indirect damages or other consequential damages, including without limitation, injury to Tenant’s business or for any
loss of income or profit therefrom.

33. LANDLORD’S EXCULPATION

No present or future officer, director, employee, trustee, partner, member, manager, retirant, beneficiary, internal
investment contractor, investment manager or agent of Landlord shall have any personal liability, directly or indirectly, and recourse
shall not be had against any such officer, director, employee, trustee, partner, member, manager, retirant, beneficiary, internal
investment contractor, investment manager or agent under or in connection with this Lease or any other document or instrument
heretofore or hereafter executed in connection with this Lease. Tenant hereby waives and releases any and all such personal liability
and recourse. The limitations of liability provided in this Article 33 are in addition to, and not in limitation of, any limitation on liability
applicable to Landlord provided by law or in any other contract, agreement or instrument.

34. BUILDING RENOVATIONS

Tenant hereby acknowledges that Landlord is currently renovating or may during the Term renovate, improve, alter,
or modify (collectively, the “Renovations”) the Building and/or the Premises, which Renovations may include, without limitation, (i)
installing sprinklers in the Common Areas and tenant spaces, (ii) modifying the Common Areas and tenant spaces to comply with
applicable laws and regulations, including regulations relating to the physically disabled, and (iii) installing new carpeting, lighting, and
wall coverings in the Common Areas. Tenant hereby agrees that such Renovations shall in no way constitute a constructive eviction of
Tenant nor entitle Tenant to any abatement of Rent, provided that Landlord uses commercially reasonable efforts to minimize
interference with Tenant’s use, possession and enjoyment of the Premises. Subject to the foregoing, Landlord shall have no
responsibility, or for any reason be liable, to Tenant for any injury to or interference with Tenant’s business arising from the
Renovations, nor shall Tenant be entitled to any compensation or damages from Landlord for loss of the use of the whole or any part of
the Premises or of tenant’s personal property or improvements resulting from the Renovations, or for any inconvenience or annoyance
occasioned by such Renovations.






35. ATTORNEYS’ FEES

If either party commences litigation against the other for the specific performance of this Lease, for damages for
breach hereof or otherwise for enforcement of any remedy hereunder, the parties hereto agree to, and hereby do waive any right to a
trial by jury and, in the event of any such commencement of litigation, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other
party such costs and reasonable attorney’s fees as may have been incurred, as well as reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in
enforcing any judgment against the non-prevailing party.

36. SURRENDER OF THE PREMISES

Tenant shall peaceably surrender the Premises to Landlord on the Expiration Date or earlier termination of this
Lease, in broom-clean condition and in as good condition as when Tenant took possession, including, without limitation, the repair of
any damage to the Premises caused by the removal of any of Tenant’s personal property or trade fixtures from the Premises, except for
reasonable wear and tear and loss by fire or other casualty not caused by Tenant or its agents, and subject to Section 7.4.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, on or before the Expiration Date or any earlier termination of this Lease,
Tenant shall, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense and in compliance with the National Electric Code and other applicable laws, remove all
electronic, fiber, phone and data cabling and related equipment that has been installed by or for the exclusive benefit of Tenant in or
around the Premises (collectively, the “Cabling”); provided, however, Tenant shall not remove the Cabling if Tenant receives a written
notice from Landlord at least fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration of the Lease authorizing all or any portion of the Cabling to
remain in place, in which event the Cabling or portion thereof authorized by Landlord remain at the Premises shall be surrendered with
the Premises upon expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. Subject to Section 7.4, any of Tenant’s personal property left on or in
the Premises, the Building or the Common Areas after the Expiration Date or earlier termination of this Lease shall be deemed to be
abandoned without any further notice whatsoever to Tenant by Landlord, and, at Landlord’s option, Landlord may dispose of said
property in any manner it deems appropriate, without compensation to Tenant, and title shall pass to Landlord under this Lease.
Landlord reserves the right to charge Tenant for the removal, storage and disposition of any of Tenant’s personal property left within
any portion of the Project. Tenant hereby waives any rights it may have under Sections 1980 through 1991 of the California Civil
Code, or any other statutes of similar import.

37. HOLDING OVER

In the event that Tenant shall not immediately surrender the Premises to Landlord on the Expiration Date or earlier
termination of this Lease, Tenant shall be deemed to be a month to month tenant upon all of the terms and provisions of this Lease,
provided however, the monthly Base Rent shall be one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the monthly Base Rent in effect during the last
month of the Term (except that if for such last month of the Term, there was a rent credit or abatement, then the month immediately
prior thereto for which there was no such rent credit or abatement, shall be used instead). The provisions of this Article 37 shall not be
deemed to limit or constitute a waiver of any other rights or remedies of Landlord provided herein or at law. If Tenant shall hold over
after the Expiration Date or earlier termination of this Lease, and Landlord shall desire to regain possession of the Premises, then
Landlord may forthwith re-enter and take possession of the Premises without process, or by any legal process in force in the State of
California, and Tenant shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from all loss, costs (including reasonable attorneys’
fees) and liability resulting from Tenant’s holding over, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the cost of unlawful
detainer proceedings instituted by Landlord against Tenant, increased construction costs to Landlord as a result of Landlord’s inability
to timely commence construction of tenant improvements for a new tenant for the Premises, lost profits that results from Landlord’s
inability to timely deliver the Premises to such new tenant, and any claims made by any succeeding tenant founded upon such failure to
surrender and any lost profits to Landlord resulting therefrom.

38. JOINT AND SEVERAL

If there is more than one Tenant, the obligations imposed upon Tenant under this Lease shall be joint and several.

39. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE: GOVERNING LAW

Time is of the essence as to Tenant’s obligations contained in this Lease. This Lease shall be construed and enforced
in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

40. SUBMISSION OF LEASE

Submission of this instrument for examination or signature by Tenant does not constitute a reservation of or an option
for lease, and it is not effective as a lease or otherwise until execution and delivery by both Landlord and Tenant.

41. BROKERS

Landlord and Tenant hereby warrant to each other that they have had no dealings with any real estate broker or agent
in connection with the negotiation of this Lease, excepting only the real estate brokers or agents specified in Section 1.12 (the
“Brokers”), and that they know of no other real estate broker or agent who is entitled to a commission in connection with this Lease.
Each party agrees to indemnify and defend the other party against and hold the other party harmless from any and all claims, demands,



losses, liabilities, lawsuits, judgments, and costs and expenses (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees) with respect to
any leasing commission or equivalent compensation alleged to be owing on account of the indemnifying party’s dealings with any real
estate broker or agent other than the Brokers. The terms of this Article 41 shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the
Term.




42. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

42.1. As used in this Lease, the term “Hazardous Material” means any flammable items, explosives,
radioactive materials, hazardous or toxic substances, material or waste or related materials, including, without limitation, any
substances defined as or included in the definition of “hazardous substances”, “hazardous wastes,” “infectious wastes,” “hazardous
materials” or “toxic substances” now or subsequently regulated under any federal, state or local laws or regulations including, without
limitation, petroleum-based products, printing inks, acids, pesticides, asbestos, PCBs and similar compounds, and including any
different products and materials which are subsequently found to have adverse effects on the environment or the health and safety of

persons.

42.2. Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Material to be generated, produced, brought upon,
used, stored, treated or disposed of in or about the Premises or the Project by Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors, affiliates,
sublessees or invitees. Tenant shall indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmless from all actions (including, without limitation,
remedial or enforcement actions of any kind, and administrative or judicial proceedings and orders or judgments), costs, claims,
damages (including punitive damages), expenses (including, attorneys’, consultants’ and experts’ fees, court costs) amounts paid in
settlement, fines, forfeitures or other civil, administrative or criminal penalties, injunctive or other relief, liabilities or losses arising
from a breach of this prohibition by Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors, affiliates, sublessees or invitees. Upon expiration or
earlier termination of this Lease, Tenant shall cause any Hazardous Materials arising out of or related to the use or occupancy of the
Premises by Tenant or its agents, affiliates, customers, employees, business associates or assigns to be removed from the Premises and
the Project and properly transported for use, storage or disposal in accordance with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances.

43. LANDLORD’S RESERVATIONS

In addition to the other rights of Landlord under this Lease, Landlord reserves the right to change the street address
and/or name of the Building without being deemed to be guilty of an eviction, actual or constructive, or a disturbance or interruption of
the business of Tenant or Tenant’s use or occupancy of the Premises.

44. PARKING

Tenant shall receive the use of the number of parking spaces set forth in Section 1.17 upon Tenant’s compliance with
all parking rules and regulations issued from time to time by Landlord and at no cost to Tenant. Tenant shall have the right (i) to lease
from Landlord for the Tenant’s use, additional spaces at the prevailing market rates established from time to time by Landlord, as and
when made available to Tenant by Landlord, and (ii) to assign or sublease any or all of the parking spaces to the extent such assignment
or subletting is in accordance with Section 13.

45. INTENTIONALLY OMITTED

46. CONFIDENTIALITY

Tenant acknowledges and agrees that the terms of this Lease and any future amendments or other agreements in
connection with this Lease are confidential and constitute proprietary information of Landlord. Disclosure of the terms could adversely
affect the ability of Landlord to negotiate other leases and impair Landlord’s relationship with other tenants. Accordingly, Tenant
agrees that it, and its partners, agents, representatives, officers, directors, employees and attorneys, shall not disclose, either directly or
indirectly, any of the terms or conditions of this Lease or any future amendments or other agreements in connection with this Lease, to
any person or entity, except (a) to personnel employed by Tenant, as reasonably necessary for Tenant's performance of its obligations
under this Lease, (b) for tax reporting purposes, (c) in any legal action or as required by law, (d) to prospective subtenants or assignees
under this Lease, () as required in connection with any filing required with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or (f) as
reasonably necessary in connection with any merger or acquisition or other business purpose of Tenant. The preceding provisions of
this paragraph shall not apply to, or bar or limit any legal action between Tenant and the Landlord to enforce this Lease.

47. INTERPRETATION OF LEASE

Landlord and Tenant have had the opportunity to review and revise this Lease. As such, this Lease shall be construed
and interpreted as the joint work product of Landlord and Tenant and/or their attorneys. The rule of construction to the effect that any
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in any interpretation of this Lease. This Lease and all of
its terms shall be construed equally as to Landlord and Tenant.




48. WAIVER OF REDEMPTION AND JURY TRIAL

TENANT HEREBY EXPRESSLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHTS OF REDEMPTION CONFERRED BY
STATUTE OR OTHERWISE, AND, WITH RESPECT TO ANY LITIGATION ARISING OUT OF THIS LEASE, AND TO THE
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, LANDLORD AND TENANT WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY AND THE RIGHT
TO FILE IN SUCH ACTION ANY COUNTERCLAIMS OR CROSS-CLAIMS AGAINST THE OTHER (OTHER THAN
COMPULSORY COUNTERCLAIMS OR CROSS-CLAIMS).

49. COUNTERPARTS

This Lease may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but such counterparts, when
taken together, shall constitute one agreement.

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]




IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed or caused this Lease to be executed by their authorized
agents as of the Lease Date.

“Landlord”:

WESTCORE PENINSULA VINTAGE, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By: Westcore Peninsula, LLC,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its Manager

By: /s/ Donald Ankeny
Donald Ankeny, Authorized Signatory
“Tenant”:

OXIS INTERNATIONAL, INC.,
a Delaware corporation

By:/s/ Steven T. Guillen
Authorized Signatory

By:

Authorized Signatory
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington D.C., 20549

Form 8-K

Current Report
Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Date Of Report (Date Of Earliest Event Reported): 2/2/2006

OXIS International, Inc.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Commission File Number: 0-8092

DE 94-1620407
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (L.R.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

6040 N Cutter Circle Suite 317, Portland, OR 97217
(Address of Principal Executive Offices, Including Zip Code)

503-283-3911
(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

(Former name or former address, if changed since last report)

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant
under any of the following provisions:

[ ] Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)
[ 1 Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act(17CFR240.14a-12)
[ ] Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act(17CFR240.14d-2(b))

[ ] Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act(17CFR240.13e-4(c))

Items to be Included in this Report




Item 1.01. Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.

OXIS International, Inc. (“OXIS”) entered into a one-year non-revolving loan agreement with an effective date of February 2,
2006 under similar terms to the KeyBank loan, described in Item 1.02 below, with Bridge Bank, N.A. (the “Bridge Bank Loan”). On
February 7, 2006, OXIS entered into a loan agreement with Bridge Bank in the amount of $3,060,000 and granted a security interest to
Bridge Bank in a $3,060,000 Certificate of Deposit that is owned by OXIS. As with the KeyBank Loan, the Bridge Bank Loan will bear
interest at an annual rate that is 2.0% greater than the annual rate of interest on the Certificate of Deposit held by Bridge Bank as
collateral.

Item 1.02. Termination of a Material Definitive Agreement

On February 7, 2006, OXIS terminated its one-year non-revolving loan agreement with KeyBank National Association
(“KeyBank™). The original loan agreement with KeyBank dated December 2, 2005 involved a loan in the amount of $3,060,000 (the
“KeyBank Loan”) which OXIS utilized to purchase fifty one percent of the outstanding shares of BioCheck, Inc. Under the terms of the
KeyBank Loan, as security for OXIS' repayment obligations under the Loan Agreement, OXIS granted a security interest to KeyBank in a
$3,060,000 Certificate of Deposit that is owned by OXIS. The KeyBank Loan bore interest at an annual rate that is 2.0% greater than the
annual rate of interest on the Certificate of Deposit held as collateral. On February 7, 2006 OXIS paid off its KeyBank loan and closed its
$3,060,000 Certificate of Deposit at KeyBank.

Signature(s)

Pursuant to the Requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its
behalf by the Undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Dated: February 15, 2006

OXIS International, Inc.

By: /s/Michael D. Centron
Michael D. Centron
Vice President & Chief Financial Officer




